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ision, Mission and Values of the IPCC

<

& Vision
—EBRAF ~ ALE ~ HARBEENRFERGE

A fair and impartial police complaints system accountable
to the public

{E#p Mission

BRHEEFNRFEATAE - BUX - ABEHEME
B UHERTFRHEASER  URSKRBERRBDA

MEE

Ensure police complaints are handled in a fair, impartial,
effective and transparent manner, and advise on
improvement to police procedures to enhance service
quality and public accountability

{B{E#R Values

+ %3z Independence
« AIE Impartiality
* H1E Integrity
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Chairman’s Foreword
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It would be an understatement, if one were to say that the Independent
Police Complaints Council (IPCC) has had an eventful year! This year
the IPCC celebrated its tenth year of existence as a statutory body. We
have certainly gathered experience but whatever we have learnt or
experienced in the last ten years, did not prepare us adequately for the
unprecedented challenges both we, and our City, have had to face.

Just three days after the successful conclusion of the IPCC's Symposium
to take stock of its work in the past ten years, large-scale public order
events (POEs) arising from the Fugitive Offenders and Mutual Legal
Assistance in Criminal Matters Legislation (Amendment) Bill (Fugitive
Offenders Bill) swept across the city, leading to arguably the most
serious crisis in the City’s 170-year history. This situation could not be
better described than what the Court of Appeal said in the opening
paragraphs of their Judgment in the Anti-Mask Regulation Case (CACV
541, 542 and 583/2019 handed down on 9 April 2020):

“1. Since June 2019, Hong Kong has experienced serious social
unrests and public disorders marked by protests, escalating
violence, vandalisms and arsons across the territory. It is a dire
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situation that has not been seen in the last 50 years.

2. The increasing violence has resulted in widespread property
damage, assaults on persons, serious damage and interruptions
to major public transport facilities and highways. The violence
and damage are mostly caused by protestors wearing masks
and dressed in black outfits. At the same time, it is a common
phenomenon that many other protestors participating in public
assemblies and processions who are not involved in violence are
also wearing masks and dressed in black outfits.”

The violence and destruction unfortunately did not stop at the end
of 2019. By the time the COVID-19 pandemic began to envelop Hong
Kong in the beginning of 2020, incalculable damage has been done
to the economy. Accompanying the physical damage were hate
messages spread through the internet against the Police and members
of their families with no regard for fact or respect for decency. These
hate messages and the general atmosphere created by the protests
and their reporting by the media turned the community into a tinderbox
of hatred and discontent. Throughout history, resolution of hatred and
discontent could only begin with understanding of the facts.

So that an independent study of the facts surrounding the protests
may facilitate the Council’s subsequent review of related Reportable
Complaint investigation reports as well as make such facts available
to the community, the IPCC, in July 2019, for the first time in its history,
decided, before concluding its work on complaints which have begun
to flood into the Complaints Against Police Office (CAPO), to proactively
carry out a Thematic Study on the Public Order Events arising from
the Fugitive Offenders Bill since June 2019 and the Police Actions in
Response (Thematic Study).

As a public statutory body, the IPCC’s actions have been guided
by principles firmly tied to the public interest and to the statutory
framework within which we operate. In this regard, the IPCC, as in the
past, held fast to four crucial elements which have guided our actions
in the performance of our statutory duties: (1) “Respect for Law”, (2)
“Respect for Fact and Fairess”, (3) “Respect for Best Practices” and (4)
“Respect for Collaboration”.

Respect for Law

As | have mentioned on many occasions, it is the legal framework set
out in the IPCC Ordinance that empowers and lays the foundation
for IPCC to carry out its functions. The IPCC was set up not as an
investigatory body but a body to ensure that investigations by CAPO are
fairly and fully investigated and appropriate actions are taken against
police officers who have been found to have infringed either police
discipline or the law. It also has the function to bring to the attention
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of the Commissioner of Police (Commissioner) and the Chief Executive
any police practice or procedure which may be improved to reduce
future complaints.

During the course of the Thematic Study, there was a Judicial Review
(JR) against the legality of the Study. The main thrust of the legal attack
on the IPCC’s powers was that the IPCC had no power to proactively
conduct a thematic study in the manner envisaged by the IPCC but
must wait until it has completed its study of the individual complaints
investigated by CAPO. In the end, the Court decided that the IPCC’s
powers to make recommendations to the Commissioner imply a power
to study facts on the ground as envisaged in the Thematic Study,
particularly in light of Section 8(2) of the IPCC Ordinance which states
that the IPCC “may do all such things that are reasonably necessary for,
or incidental or conducive to, the performance of its functions under
this Ordinance”.

Though IPCC held the view that it had strong legal basis for the
Study, the Council respected the legal process and thus put on hold
the release of the planned interim report while doing its utmost to
solicit an early determination of the JR. Once the High Court ruled
that the conduct of Thematic Study was within the remit of the IPCC’s
statutory authority, the Council and the Special Task Force stepped
up its work and published a full Report on 15 May 2020. The Report
may be read from the IPCC's website: www.ipcc.gov.hk.

Respect for Fact and Fairness

The Council considered that in order to fully perform its statutory
functions, it was necessary to find out all relevant facts of the POEs
from a macro perspective. Thus, the Thematic Study was not an
investigation report into the conduct of individual police officers,
but aimed at reconstructing the facts and chronology of the series of
events and presenting a broad picture which would allow the Council
to gain a deep understanding of the background of the POE-related
complaint cases, so as to monitor and review investigation of individual
complaint case submitted by CAPO effectively and make practical
recommendations to the Police.

Apart from appealing for relevant information, the IPCC also conducted
researches on issues relevant to the Thematic Study - the Keele
University of the United Kingdom was commissioned to carry out a
research on international practices of police identification system;
the University College London was engaged to conduct a survey on
police officers’ perception of large-scale POEs and relevant policing
duties; the Centre for Communication and Public Opinion Survey of The
Chinese University of Hong Kong had also been appointed to conduct
a study on the views of the protesters and members of the public.
These research findings provided useful background information for
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the Thematic Study about the emotions, perceptions and intentions
for some of the actions taken by the protesters, the community and
the Police as POEs evolved through the months. It enabled the
understanding of the complete picture of the POEs involving not only
what had happened but also what had been the driving force or belief
that caused actions taken by concerned parties.

While undertaking the Thematic Study at full speed, the IPCC also
maintained its efforts in monitoring the on-going complaint cases.
Every complaint investigation report submitted by CAPO must be
scrutinised by the IPCC in accordance with stringent vetting procedures.
Checks and balances have been achieved by Queries raised to CAPO,
which also ensure effective monitoring of the complaint handling.
During the reporting period, 220 allegations were reclassified to more
definite and appropriate classification results following IPCC's Queries,
representing 60% increase in comparison with the previous year. These
included 162 allegations that were reclassified from “Unsubstantiated”,
“Not Pursuable”, and “Withdrawn” to “Substantiated”, “No Fault”, and
“False”, which clearly indicated the robustness and perseverance of
IPCC’s vetting process.

Our Members and Observers attended 2,127 observations during
the reporting period with an attendance rate of 96.5%, which was
on the rise for the fourth consecutive year. Furthermore, extra effort
was made by the Council, Observers and Secretariat staff to ensure
all observations relating to POEs were 100% attended by the IPCC to
ensure evidence collection work was performed in a fair and impartial
manner by CAPQ.

Respect for Best Practices

Hong Kong is an international city where oversight mechanism and
regulatory regime have often been benchmarked with international
best practices. In the course of reviewing complaint cases and
proceeding with the Thematic Study, Police General Orders and Force
Procedures Manual were referenced and compared against relevant
international best practices. The objective is not just to verify if police
actions conformed to prevailing guidelines. The broader aim is to
capture lessons learnt and best practices around the world for making
recommendations to the Police so that their practices and procedures
may be improved.

During the conduct of the Thematic Study, the IPCC took reference of
the practices and experience of many overseas regions in areas such
as use of force, police identification during protests, with an aim to
evaluate whether the existing guidelines adopted by the Force are on
par with international standard and determine how to improve if similar
situation arises in the future. In its Thematic Study Report, the IPCC had
made 52 forward-looking recommendations with a view to improving
the service quality of the Police and enhancing public trust in the Force.
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The IPCC is encouraged that the Chief Executive, the Security Bureau
and the Police attached great importance to the Thematic Study Report.
As requested by the Chief Executive, the Secretary for Security is
personally heading a task force to follow up on these recommendations.
The Council will continue to monitor the implementation of
improvement measures by the Police through the existing mechanisms.
In addition to these 52 recommendations, the Council has put forward
more than 150 improvement recommendations in the past ten years to
the Police to help the Force improve their service quality.

Respect for Collaboration

The theme of the IPCC Symposium 2019 was: “Building Confidence
and Trust — Role of IPCC in the Evolving Future”. The IPCC believes
that sincere and rational communication and collaboration with the
community are crucial for effective operation of the two-tier police
complaints system.

The Thematic Study could not have been as well documented and
covered as much ground without the full collaboration of the HKSAR
Government, the Police Force and organisations we approached.
The IPCC received over 23,500 photo attachments and 22,500 video
attachments / links from the public and there were many sources which
the IPCC had sought assistance. These are all documented in the
Thematic Study Report.

During the reporting period, the IPCC strengthened its engagement with
local concern groups, professional bodies, educational institutions,
academics, police staff associations as well as oversight bodies from
overseas, Macau SAR and the Mainland through sharing of experience
and challenges. Through the IPCC 10th Anniversary activities,
meetings, talks, School Programme, visits and publications, we have
reached out to over 30,000 stakeholders in the past two years. The
IPCC also stepped up media communication activities to promote
transparency and understanding of IPCC’s work progress in particular
on the Thematic Study this year. Council Members and | also took up
25 media interviews (record high in the past 5 years) to explain IPCC's
roles and the Thematic Study.

Our Community needs to move forward

It is hoped that the facts presented in the Thematic Study would begin
to resolve the deep divisions within the community. Our society
needs to move forward. Once again, | appeal to all members of the
public to express their views in a peaceful and rational manner while
exercising their right to assembly, and say no to violence. We need
to mend the rift, resolve disputes, and regain momentum so that our
community can forge a consensus by adopting a pragmatic, inclusive
and accommodating mindset.
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| would like to take this opportunity to thank all Council Members,
Observers and Secretariat staff for their commitment and
contribution to IPCC’s work over the past year. In the face of
different voices, opinions and heavy workload, they had striven
to complete the unprecedented and complex Thematic Study and
maintain professionalism in upholding impartiality and integrity
when performing IPCC's statutory functions.

The IPCC must move forward with the community in ensuring that
its statutory powers are more thoroughly utilised to serve the
community. The IPCC has now established that it may undertake
thematic studies and the Government has accepted the 52
recommendations in the Thematic Study and has created task
force for implementation. | believe that this is a new direction
pointing to more effective performance of its statutory duties. In the
coming year, since this is the beginning of the second decade of its
existence, the IPCC can explore further avenues within its statutory
framework to better serve the public. Furthermore, the IPCC can
do more to explain its remit under the law to the public, so that
the public’s assistance may be enlisted in the improvement of the
two-tier police complaints system. As this is a system to ensure
that the public’s complaints may be fully and fairly investigated
and monitored, it can only work if Complainants provide full and
complete information. What is needed is that all sides, the Police,
the IPCC and the public must engage with each other in effective
collaboration.

| am sure there will be daunting challenges ahead, but | firmly
believe that as long as we maintain a positive and empathetic
attitude, respect the law, plant our work and conclusions firmly
upon fact and fairness, attempt to introduce the best practices
around the world suited to our circumstances, and strive to work
together, we will create a better future for the community.
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Police complaints system in Hong Kong
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Hong Kong has adopted a two-tier police complaints system. All complaints
against the Police are referred to the Complaints Against Police Office
(CAPO) of the Hong Kong Police Force for handling and investigation. This
is the first tier of the police complaints system.

When CAPO has completed the investigation of a Reportable Complaint, it
will submit the investigation report, together with relevant files, documents
and materials, to the Independent Police Complaints Council (IPCC)
for scrutiny.

If any doubt arises during its review of the investigation report and the
relevant materials, the IPCC will ask CAPO for clarification or further
information. If the IPCC finds the investigation inadequate, it will request
that the case be further investigated. Only when the IPCC completely agrees
that the complaint case has been properly handled will it endorse the
investigation report. This is the second tier of the police complaints system.

R e R E I ERE ECHEIZAERS
CAPO investigates IPCC reviews
complaints investigation reports
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Hong Kong’s two-tier police complaints system

The advantage of the two-tier system is that it ensures the fair and just
handling of complaints against the Police. As an independent statutory
body, the IPCC can objectively observe, monitor and review the handling
and investigation of Reportable Complaints by the Commissioner of
Police, and put forward opinions and recommendations regarding such
complaints to the Commissioner of Police and the Chief Executive.

R E R B AR R
CAPO receives Reportable Complaint

BITRE
Investigation

l

RFERRARTATHRS
CAPO submits investigation report

EEEERRERS
IPCC reviews investigation report

IPCC reviews BRAEER FRBHRERER
investigation Agrees with investigation result Disagrees with investigation result

reports - RIFERBRRIBRTFA - ARFERRERBBERREELZEN
s EFRAHEFABRRNEETE + IPCC seeks clarification or further
c BEENB MRS ERITEE RN information from CAPO
BFREBEERN/ ZITHREER

HEE

+ CAPO responds to Complainant MRS
+ Police take appropriate action Rejects report

against Complainee

« IPCC may offer recommendations to
the Commissioner of Police and/ or the
Chief Executive on improvements to
police practices and procedures

c AIERBHERREMAL

- A REBEAN BB

- AIRERITEEEERNME SRR

+ May request CAPO to reinvestigate
complaint

+ May interview witnesses to clarify
uncertainties

+ May bring up the case during working
level meetings or joint IPCC/CAPO
meetings
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The role and functions of the IPCC
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The IPCC was established as a statutory body on 1 June 2009 under the
Independent Police Complaints Council Ordinance (IPCCO) (Cap. 604, Laws
of Hong Kong) to observe, monitor and review the Commissioner of Police’s
handling and investigation of Reportable Complaints against the Police.
With the IPCCO taking effect, the Police have a statutory duty to comply
with the IPCC’s requests. The Ordinance enhanced the independence of
the IPCC in carrying out its monitoring functions.

The IPCC comprises a Chairman, three Vice-Chairmen and not less than
eight Members, all appointed by the Chief Executive. This composition
enables the IPCC to draw upon the diverse professional expertise and
experience of its Members to monitor CAPO’s investigation of complaints
against the Police in an independent, impartial and thorough manner. As
of 31 March 2020, the IPCC comprises 26 Members.
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(BREGHA) BFrETENEEMENT ¢
The main functions of the IPCC as provided for under the IPCCO are:

O
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B ERENERETEEREENATRERKRFIVIE

To observe, monitor and review the handling and investigation of
Reportable Complaints by the Commissioner of Police

ERETRERRECURFEODEAERRFAMNEFZAE
REBI1TE)

To monitor actions taken or to be taken in respect of any police officer by
the Commissioner of Police in connection with Reportable Complaints

HHEKRTEBEEIEF 5 AIFESI R E RR AV ER
KA EZ B

To identify any fault or deficiency in police practices or procedures that
has led to or might lead to a Reportable Complaint

MEFREREERNSTHRRERTEBERRKRFEANER
EFD/_‘ZLD?‘Z

To advise the Commissioner of Police and/or the Chief Executive of its
opinion and/or recommendations in connection with Reportable Complaints

IE:YNAS S Y RN ER

To promote public awareness of the role of the Council
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Monitoring procedures of the IPCC

ERFERFIENMERBET > EEEG
WEIRFERREXNAERRFAER
TR EXHWERETVNIEL > LM
HERSTARAERRREEARERZ
REARREEZEN - EMERHASE
REREEH  FERFAERERERRTE
EEZE8EBZ NMARE > ZEAE—D
RUER > TRRFERRAAIEREE
GEANBE TR o

EZETREBESE  LHEERF
B EERERFERRATHEMRRRE
THEEREETIFAF « RLE - Hi >
ELgUnENBERETEE  §RERHF
A BERHFA S BAF > BBBRETHR
HEEREBRE - MBAENIIESEE
CEARBITEAERBE °

MELERERERRFERREMHH
MAEFBBERKRHAERNREER >
ARITHRERSN AR KEES
HRTERNTRDE o

EEERS
IPCC Members

EEEHEE
IPCC Secretariat
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Under the two-tier police complaints system, when an investigation report
of a Reportable Complaint is submitted by CAPO to the IPCC, the Secretariat
will conduct a preliminary examination on it and may raise Queries and ask
for clarification or further information from CAPO. If the Secretariat has no
Queries, the report will be submitted to Members for scrutiny. If necessary,
Members can make further Queries and discuss the case with CAPO at
working level or joint meetings.

The IPCC also administers an Observers Scheme to discharge its
monitoring function, so as to ensure that the interviews and collection of
evidence conducted by CAPO during investigation are handled in a fair
and impartial manner. In addition, the IPCC may decide on a case-by-
case basis to interview Complainants, Complainees, witnesses or other
persons concerned with a view to assisting Members in understanding the
complaints and clarifying any matter in doubt. Both powers will enable the
IPCC to perform its statutory functions more effectively.

If the IPCC’s final decision is not to endorse the investigation results of a
particular case, it may disclose the disagreement of both parties on the
findings of the investigation to the Chief Executive and/or the public.

Ar
et

#2 BEEERREHERFNERRNABEAERKSFME
T EMBRRETE

Note: IPCC Observers may attend interviews and observe collection
of evidence in connection with CAPQ’s investigation of

- Reportable Complaints.

Ezalgs
IPCC Observer



$—% Chapter1
& About the IPCC

IS =5

EEENERE EEgZEREBES
IPCC Secretariat IPCC Members and
Observers
Ui R LB BREiHE
Complaint received Vetting Observers Scheme
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Case unresolved

BEY [ BRERR
BEEER
Discussion at joint

IPCC/ CAPO meeting

EE&HFA

Investigation Raise Queries No Query Vetting shared by four Sub-groups
~
SERL A E I % RHE#
AERERTELEY / Raise Queries
Investigation
completed and
investigation report
submitted to the IPCC B gE
IPCC interview
BiE [ REESEY
Clarification/provide
more information Eiﬁfg—ﬁﬁ?ﬁ.
Further vetting by Chairman
EEgARFERRE
ERENECHIEEYE R BEEH
If required, working level meeting Raise Queries No Query
between the IPCC and CAPO
to be conducted
ZREE BBREER
E—SEZ Council’s Investigation
Further vetting confirmation result endorsed

HEER
TEER
Investigation result
not endorsed

c AITBRERS
Report to the Chief Executive

c AAREBREFNATERNER D/
MEBRFEFZASRENTHNER
Disclose disagreement on investigation
result/opinion on actions to be taken
against defaulting officers

Respond to
Complainant
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IPCC Interview

BRTYBRZBERSEN > EEGFAIERM  In addition to reviewing the investigation reports, the IPCC may ask
EREMEAALEE > WEBFE o GHEst  for interviews with persons related to the case to clarify matters. The
BI04 F B T > ®ESTEI T » 8 IPCC Interview was introduced in 1994, and the IPCC may interview any
EEUGREMENMBERSESMEE  persons who may provide relevant information or assistance, including
SREENAHMBIIAL » BFERSF  Complainants, Complainees, witnesses, or other independent persons.
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IPCC Complainant Complainee Witness independent
person
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Observers Scheme
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The Observers Scheme was introduced in 1996 to strengthen the
IPCC’s monitoring function. Under the Scheme, Observers appointed
by the Secretary for Security may attend interviews and observe
collection of evidence in connection with CAPQ’s investigation
of Reportable Complaints. IPCC Members can likewise conduct
such observations.

Insofar as practicable, CAPO will notify the IPCC at least 48 hours in
advance of any impending interview or collection of evidence. The IPCC
Secretariat will then notify Observers of the observations. Apart from
pre-arranged observations, Observers can also attend and observe
investigations by CAPO without making prior appointments.

The role of an Observer is primarily to observe and report. The Observer
is to remain fair and impartial, without interfering or offering personal
opinions, while observing the conduct of interviews or collection of
evidence.

After each observation, the Observer will submit to the IPCC a report
stating whether the interview or collection of evidence was conducted in a
fair and impartial manner. Should any irregularities be reported, the IPCC
will follow up with CAPO.

All persons who are to be interviewed by CAPO in connection with a
Reportable Complaint can request an Observer to be present during the
interview. Upon receipt of such a request, the IPCC will make every effort to
arrange the observation accordingly.

Sk g =]

OBSERVER

B ZE2020FE3H31H
BRELEeHF 1208 ERE -

As of 31 March 2020, there were 120 IPCC
Observers.
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BEEgHxs
IPCC Observer

Appointment of Observers
Section 33 of IPCCO

The IPCC Observers are appointed by the Secretary for Security. To ensure
their impartiality, the following persons are NOT eligible for appointment
as Observers:

1. A person who holds an office of emolument, whether permanent or
temporary, in a Government bureau or department

2. The Secretary-General, the Legal Adviser or any other employee of the
Council

3. A former member of the Police Force

R E R Wik A
CAPO Officer Complainanee
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Joint meetings: IPCC and CAPO
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IHEBEZEEHEY (www.ipcc.gov.hk) o

The IPCC and CAPO conduct quarterly joint meetings to discuss matters
relating to police complaints.

To enable the public to better understand the work of the IPCC, part of each
joint meeting is open to the public and the media. The dates and agendas
of the joint meetings are published in advance on the IPCC’s website.
Minutes of the open part of each meeting are also uploaded to the IPCC's
website (www.ipcc.gov.hk).
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Reportable Complaints and Notifiable Complaints
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Reportable
Complaints

p
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Reportable Complaints

“Reportable Complaints” refer to complaints, lodged by members of the
public, that are not vexatious or frivolous and are made in good faith,
relating to the conduct of police officers while on duty or who identify
themselves as police officers while off duty. The complaint should be made
by or on behalf of a person directly affected by the police misconduct.

CAPO must submit investigation reports to the IPCC for scrutiny as stated
in the Ordinance. However, investigation reports and information on the
following complaints need not be submitted to the IPCC:

« Complaints arising from the issue of a summons or imposition of a fixed
penalty, which solely relate to the validity of the issue

« Complaints lodged by a person in his official capacity as a member of
the Police Force

+ Complaints that fall under the scope of investigation of other statutory
bodies



AMGigh

RAB MABRKS) > TRIERI XAt &
ARRGZEEHRSG > —REBEA AN
Gk o HIM | HER ALEHBYRER
AR IFERZZENATEHBRR -

RFERRAETHER ENERFI B
BRBETEEEEZ - FELEERXLE
SRFERES AERKSH > TAK
MERRFLHBRENES  RFERRE
ABENMERZRRFOEE - It > BE
A ERKRFEZRRUFTRERKS
RENMERER -

$—% Chapter1
g About the IPCC

ANMENTR
Notifiable
Comp\aints

Notifiable Complaints

“Notifiable Complaints” are complaints not categorised as “Reportable
Complaints”, or complaints that need not be submitted to the IPCC as
listed above. These include anonymous complaints or complaints lodged
by persons who are not directly affected by the case.

CAPO must regularly submit a summary of “Notifiable Complaints” to the
IPCC for scrutiny. If the IPCC considers any of these cases to be “Reportable
Complaints”, the IPCC may raise relevant suggestions to CAPO, and CAPO
will then need to reconsider the categorisation of the complaint. Moreover,
the IPCC may request CAPO to submit further supporting information or
explanation regarding the categorisation of any particular complaint.

Independent Police Complaints Council | Report 2019/20
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Classification of investigation results

—REFASR—EHISN—ENIEZE o A complaint may consist of one or more allegations. After CAPO has
BEEERFERREZEFNER > §REF  conducted a full and thorough investigation into an allegation, it will be
BHERDPBATIIREZ— ! classified as one of the following six types according to the findings:
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. An allegation is classified as “Substantiated” when there is sufficient
Substantiated reliable evidence to support the allegation made by the Complainant.

Substantiated Other An allegation is classified as “Substantiated Other Than Reported”

when matters other than the original allegations raised by the
Than Reported Complainant, which are closely associated with the complaint and have
a major impact on the investigation, have been discovered and are
found to be substantiated.

Not Fu[[y An allegation is classified as “Not Fully Substantiated” when there
Substantiated is some reliable evidence to support the allegation made by the
ubstantiate Complainant, but it is insufficient to fully substantiate the complaint.
Unsubstantiated An allegation is classified as “Unsubstantiated” when there is insufficient

evidence to support the allegation made by the Complainant.

No Fault Two common reasons for classifying a complaint as “No Fault” are,
first, the Complainant may have misunderstood the facts; and second,
the Complainee was acting under lawful instructions from his superior
officer or in accordance with established police practices.

False An allegation is classified as “False” when there is sufficient reliable

evidence to indicate that the allegation made by the Complainant is
untrue, be it a complaint with clear malicious intent, or a complaint
which is not based upon genuine conviction or sincere belief but with
no element of malice.

When a complaint is classified as “False”, CAPO will consider, in
consultation with the Department of Justice as necessary, prosecuting
the Complainant for misleading a police officer.

Independent Police Complaints Council | Report 2019/20
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Other complaint classifications
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Some complaints are handled by other means, so that no full investigation
is necessary. These complaints can be classified as:
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Withdrawn A complaint is classified as “Withdrawn” when the Complainant does not wish to
pursue the complaint after making it.

Even when a Complainant initiates the withdrawal of a complaint, the IPCC will ensure
that no undue influence has been exerted on the Complainant, and that the Police can
learn from the complaint. The IPCC will also ensure that CAPO will take appropriate
remedial actions.

A Complainant’s withdrawal does not necessarily result in the case being classified
as “Withdrawn”. The IPCC and CAPO will examine the available evidence to ascertain
whether a full investigation is warranted despite the withdrawal and/or whether any of
the allegations are substantiated on the basis of information available.

Not Pursuable An allegation is classified as “Not Pursuable” when:
« The identity of the officer in the complaint cannot be ascertained

+ The cooperation of the Complainant cannot be obtained to proceed with the
investigation

The above definition does not mean that no further action will be taken when the
Complainant cannot identify the Complainee. CAPO will make an effort to identify
the Complainee(s) on the basis of the information available. Only after such an effort
has been made to no avail will the conclusion be reached that the identity of the
Complainee cannot be ascertained.

If a complaint has been classified as “Not Pursuable” due to lack of cooperation from
the Complainant, it may be reactivated later when the Complainant comes forward to
provide the necessary information.

Curtailed A complaint is classified as “Curtailed” when it has been registered with CAPO but is
curtailed — i.e. not fully investigated — on the authorisation of the Chief Superintendent
(Complaints and Internal Investigations Branch), owing to special circumstances such
as known mental condition of the Complainant.

|nf0rma|[y The “Informal Resolution Scheme” aims at a speedy resolution of minor complaints,
R lved such as allegations of impoliteness or use of offensive language, the nature of which is
esotve considered relatively minor.

A minor complaint suitable for Informal Resolution will not be subject to a full
investigation. Instead, a senior officer, of at least the rank of Chief Inspector of Police,
will act as the Conciliating Officer and make separate enquiries with the Complainant
and the Complainee regarding the facts of a complaint. If the Conciliating Officer is
satisfied that the matter is suitable for Informal Resolution, and the Complainant is in
agreement, the complaint will be informally resolved.
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UMELCO Police Group

The establishment of the IPCC can be traced back to 1974, when the
Commissioner of Police set up CAPO to investigate police complaints
from the public. Having considered that the investigations should
involve an independent body, the Commissioner of Police invited
the sub-committee of the Unofficial Members of the Executive
and Legislative Councils (UMELCO), which was responsible for
handling police and security matters, to monitor CAPO complaint
investigations in 1977; this was the prototype of the two-tier police
complaints system. In 1978, the UMELCO Police Group presented
its first report on police complaints to the then Governor (reporting
period from 1 September 1977 to 30 April 1978), which was then
submitted to the Legislative Council for review on 16 August 1978.
From then on, the UMELCO Police Group prepared an annual
progress report.

After the UMELCO Police Group was established, there was a
drastic increase in the number of police complaints which required
its monitoring. The high workload indicated there was a need to
strengthen and broaden the monitoring system structure. Thus, the
Government set up a working group to review the UMELCO Police
Group’s monitoring of CAPO in early 1984,

Police Complaints Committee

In 1986, after the Government meticulously reviewed the working
group’s recommendations, the then Governor restructured the
UMELCO Police Group and set up an independent police complaints
monitoring committee, comprising Justices of the Peace as
members and a supporting secretariat. It was also renamed as the
Police Complaints Committee.
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Independent Police Complaints Council -
before becoming a statutory body

In December 1994, the Committee was further revamped to pave
the way for becoming an independent statutory body, clarifying the
Council’'s powers and functions. Both the English and Chinese names
of the Council were modified to better reflect its independence.

The Bill that suggested changing the then IPCC into a statutory
body was introduced to the Legislative Council in July 1996. The
Bill proposed clarifying the powers and functions of the then IPCC,
in order to reinforce its authority in handling police complaints,
and to enhance public awareness of the Council as an independent
monitoring entity.

As some Legislative Council Members raised a number of Committee
Stage Amendments that might bring fundamental changes to the
police complaints system, the Bill was withdrawn by the Government
on 23 June 1997.

Independent Police Complaints Council -
after becoming a statutory body

In 2004, the Government relaunched its plan to change the then
IPCC into a statutory body, with a view to empowering it with a legal
basis to discharge its functions and to raise public confidence in the
two-tier police complaints system. On 29 June 2007, the Independent
Police Complaints Council Bill was gazetted. The Bill was tabled at
the Legislative Council on 11 July 2007 for First Reading.

The Legislative Council passed the IPCCO in July 2008. The Secretary
for Security then decided that the IPCCO would come into effect on
1 June 2009 and the IPCC become a statutory body on the same
date. The Chinese name of the Council was modified to highlight its
monitoring role, while the English name was retained.
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Number of investigation reports and allegations

BERIBBNAERRFERHT

Number of Reportable Complaint cases received and endorsed

2019/20 2018/19
BENABRREHER
Reportable Complaint cases received 1’478 1,521
BB R AE R ESR
BIBK AR R HE 1,293 1527

Reportable Complaint cases endorsed

EARKRESHA (2019F481H £2020  During the reporting period (1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020), the IPCC
F3A31H) » BEGHEZERFERR  received reports from CAPO on the investigation of 1,478 new Reportable
1,478 RATMABRIZFERNVFERS > Complaint cases, which represented a decrease of 2.8% compared to
FETPE2.8% ° last year.

A BEE@BBT1,293RABEHRKSF  Inthe same period, the IPCC endorsed the results of investigations for 1,293
BENAEER (BESSRBERMERE) > Reportable Complaint cases (including 55 reviewed cases), a decrease
BETHEI53% BT EBRMERSS > of 15.3% compared to the previous year. There were a total of 2,209
RBIEEEF2,209E » HETME10.4% > allegations, excluding the reviewed cases, a decrease of 10.4% compared
HPFTEMZBEZERRFS TBRZB  to last year. The three major allegations in descending order were
T TIRARE /MERE/MMEWMEI & “Neglect of Duty”, “Misconduct/ Improper Manner/ Offensive Language”
TBR¥T] © and “Assault”.

38 BUBRRESRERFESE | 2019/20 TIERE
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BLEBERERIE Monitoring the Handling of Complaints

BBNIEEHT (RUEEDE) AIRTXR:
The following chart shows details of the number of allegations endorsed (by nature):

EEgiBAnNEE
Allegations endorsed by the IPCC

Il 2019/20 514 2 209 I 2018/19 $51E 488 2 466
Total number of allegations ) Total number of allegations 9

BT 1,003 45.4%
Neglect of Duty 1,219 49.4%
R (E /S HE 952 38.6%

Misconduct/
Improper Manner/
Offensive Language

BR¥T - 175 7.9%
Assault e e

BB ' 55 2.5%
Unnecessary Use 46 1.9%

of Authority

BEEE

Fabrication of Evidence

40 1.8%
35 1.4%

pralid
Threat

26 1.2%
42 1.7%

EBRER 0 0.%
Police Procedures | 10.04%

HAth 1T 0 0%
Other Offences | 5 0.2%

i AREURE 0 B RNBMETRERSZE100% °
FEHFHEZEEN3A3A -

Note: Percentage shares may not add up to exactly 100% due to rounding of figures.
Figures are as at 31 March of the respective reporting year.
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Investigation results

7£2019/20% £ # i@ 1B B2,20918 15 &
o REEAEMIEER771E > EF57
B A TEEABE  LELE2E
FAEIEEER7.2% © 1918 A TREERR
BEBEEE (152.4%) »2ERKYA ME
FEREEEBEL (150.3%) 0 257EHT
A TEEEE (1532.2%) » 4031E# 5
A TEBSE | (1550.6%) » 59IBRIMHF
7 TEBARE » (h4EEM7.4%

EHHNILANEERETEAAENE
e > 20218 NEBEERXBER > GE
FETEERATREPIL3% - 46217
®H & TREREEL (1532.7%) » 74818
®y A TEABE) ((553.0%) - RA1E
EWYA TRIERESE -

BUBERESRERFEES | 2019/20 TIFRE

Of the 2,209 allegations endorsed in 2019/20, 797 were fully investigated.
Of these, 57 (7.2% of fully investigated allegations) were classified as
“Substantiated”; 19 (2.4%) as “Substantiated Other Than Reported”; 2
(0.3%) as “Not Fully Substantiated”; 257 (32.2%) as “Unsubstantiated”;
403 (50.6%) as “No Fault” and 59 (7.4%) as “False”.

Of the remaining 1,412 allegations which did not require full investigation,
202 (14.3% of those not fully investigated) were “Informally Resolved”; 462
(32.7%) were classified as “Withdrawn”; 748 (53.0%) as “Not Pursuable”.
There was no allegation being classified as “Curtailed”.

) REPORT
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BLEBERERIE Monitoring the Handling of Complaints

2018/19f012019/20 FEMAEEREIRIEBAITR TR ¢
The following table shows a comparison of the figures regarding investigation results
between 2018/19 and 2019/20:

ELgRBANRESR
Investigation results endorsed by the IPCC

B 2019/20 $5i4E

Total number of allegations

KB E
Substantiated

RIRBRIREZRABE
Substantiated Other
Than Reported

BETERPEE

Not Fully Substantiated

PN L Y=
®mAEE

Unsubstantiated

A S
No Fault

ERTHE
False

BBEHELNER
Informally Resolved

Ec g el
Withdrawn

#RIBE
Not Pursuable

= BREMRR > B9 XA AERKZ 100% ©
EEHFHEZEEMN3IA3IA

Note: Percentage shares may not add up to exactly 100% due to rounding of figures.
Figures are as at 31 March of the respective reporting year.

B 2018/19 $EiE4EH
Total number of allegations

2,209 2,466

KREEAEMIEE
Allegations that required full investigation

57 7.2%
56 8.9%

19 2.4%
16 2.5%

2019/20

797

2018/19

630

2 0.3%
7 11%

—

257 32.2%
299 47.5%

403 50.6%
219 34.8%
59 7.4%
33 5.2%

202 14.3%
324 17.6%
462 32.7%
597 32.5%
748 53.0%
915 49.8%

BEETEERBEMNIEE
Allegations that did not require full investigation

2019/20

1,412

2018/19

1,836
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EESEANAERRFERNEENT (RECENRELERID)
Number of allegations involved in the Reportable Complaint cases endorsed by the IPCC
(by nature and by results of investigations)

[ REI= A / E%- %.E o ;ﬁm
Nﬁﬁnﬁguty Misconduct/ Aﬁﬁlt Unnecessary Use of
g Improper Manner/ Authority
Offensive Language
{3 Year 2019/20 2018/19 2019/20 2018/19 2019/20 2018/19 2019/20 2018/19

B2EAEHISEE Allegations that required full investigation

EEPEE

Substantiated M 41 15 14 0 0 1 1
KREERE®
BEREE
Substantiated 17 16 1 0 0 0 1 0
Other Than

Reported

\ER2EN
BE

Not Fully
Substantiated

mIEEE

Unsubstantiated

76 123 147 145 19 14 9 13

o B R

o ot 281 161 91 38 2 5 24 13

ERTE

False

It

Subtotal 424 344 268 204 35 31 36 27

EEET2EAEMNISHE Allegations that did not require full investigation

EAMESR

R

Informally 79 149 123 175 0 0 0 0
Resolved

BEEE

Withdraan 216 324 201 212 29 38 6 4
WABE

Not Pursuable 284 402 318 361 m 97 13 15
Nt

Subtotal 579 875 642 748 140 135 19 19
s 1,003 1,219 910 952 175 166 55 46

Total

42 BUBRFEHRERFZEEE | 2019/20 TERE



% Chapter2
BLEBERERIE Monitoring the Handling of Complaints

RiEER 2 Wi EBER HAth3E1T il

Fabrication of Evidence Threat Police Procedures Other Offences Total

2019/20  2018/19  2019/20  2018/19  2019/20  2018/19  2019/20  2018/19  2019/20  2018/19

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 57 56

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 19 16

0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 7

0 1 6 2 0 0 0 1 257 299
3 1 2 0 0 0 0 1 403 219
21 15 2 1 0 0 0 1 59 33
24 18 10 3 0 0 0 3 797 630
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 202 324
7 5 3 12 0 0 0 2 462 597
9 12 13 27 0 1 0 0 748 915
16 17 16 39 0 1 0 2 1,412 1,836
40 35 26 42 0 1 0 5 2,209 2,466
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EFHERASRNRETE

Police actions against defaulting officers

AFREFEEEZTBENERTD - £F

BOREBABRRRCEIRMNE A

In this reporting year, disciplinary proceedings or internal actions were
178 BRO0REZR - PIEHFR TR

taken against 80 police officers regarding 60 cases endorsed by the IPCC.
The following table shows the breakdown of figures:

B 2018/19 K 2019/20 FEMEE T BB FER
RERNEHASHENNITEH

Police actions taken against defaulting officers
regarding cases endorsed by the IPCC during 2018/19 and 2019/20

AEEH Number of officers

2019/20 2018/19
A RISE5RFER

Criminal proceedings

0

B 4£EER
Disciplinary review

C HithmEp1T
Other internal actions

& Warnings

25 115
2z Advice

53 60
448 Total

80 81

2018/ 19 EENHFEREDIMERERE > TUREE o
Note: Figures for 2018/19 have been adjusted following case reviews

4 BUBFEHRERFZEEE | 2019/20 TERE
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Queries raised with CAPO

F2019/20FE > BEEERRFERRS
HIEH1,24470 88 > ABFEREELZEER
BRFFERRRHOSHEER > FINELH
EREVADT > MREATREEZEY
REB  UREEGRESNIIEEHRN
RFRHREEES -

RE (REEHRA) > RFERFLARDE
ELEEMNEH  SEELTTWRIRHFEER
AOEE > EZEBRGHEEFHNEY -
RRREN > ARRIXTZEEARNERZ
NEZERERMENE - BEFER
ELEELA—FENRFERERBR
HEH  AREREXINIFEESREL
MRFHERRBN >  EEEZTREER
% T EEBRRRFER -

BREHR HEWEEATEBMER
€ HERMERRKEHELEeEERANE
FHRENmE > SERERBRER

HBH

Total number of Queries

1,244

e p——

$B°E Chapter2
BLEBERERIE Monitoring the Handling of Complaints

The IPCC raised a total of 1,244 Queries to CAPO in 2019/20. These
Queries included various requests to CAPO, for example, changing the
content of the investigation reports, providing more information and
clarification regarding the reports, and the IPCC making improvement
recommendations on the Police practices and procedures, etc.

According to the IPCCO, CAPO must reply to the IPCC's Queries. When the
IPCC receives the responses from CAPQO, the vetting team will scrutinise the
information, explanations and views before passing on to the Members
of vetting Sub-groups for consideration of accepting the reply. When
necessary, the IPCC may raise follow-up Queries regarding the same
matters, or bring up the matters to the working level meetings for further
discussion with CAPQ. Investigation reports will be endorsed only when
the IPCC is satisfied with the explanations.

During the reporting period, there were 747 Queries requiring further
actions. The remaining Queries were given satisfactory explanation
and resolved after further Queries by the IPCC or discussion with CAPO
at meetings.

2
IPCC

RIFERE
CAPO

Independent Police Complaints Council | Report 2019/20
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The following table shows the breakdown of figures regarding Queries raised by the IPCC:

Tgo%tjﬁ?mber of Queries 1 9 2 4 4

F15 Year
A4 E Nature of Queries

REGRDE
Classification of
investigation results

HEEKRERN
BEFNE=R
Recommended
improvements to police
practices and procedures

BREBEANER
Compliance with police
practices and procedures

TEEENER
Reasons for exercising
police power

HEEBERASHN
THRUEER

Comments on actions
against defaulting officers

HAAEHREEN
Clarification of information
ininvestigation reports

REEHE
Investigation
thoroughness

HithE

Other Queries

gy
Total

46 BUBRESRERHFESS | 2019/20 TERE

FERFRENES
Number of Queries requiring 747
further actions
TEBERENED
A . Number of Queries requiring further
Total number of Queries .
actions
2019/20 2018/19 2019/20 2018/19
361 258 212 147
17 23 16 19
8 14 3 3
2 9 1 0
16 14 12 11
628 301 398 202
155 107 77 59
57 51 28 33
1,244 /77 747 474




ELEEHE2019/20FEMAELERDER
H361REH > MRFERRFEBFR
ENEHEF212IE AEFUEERS
EREVIEER 22018 > BF !

23
10

17
69

15

reclassified
from

b |
reclassified
from

b |
reclassified
from

|

reclassified
from

|
reclassified
from

=
reclassified
from

15

reclassified
from

% Chapter2
BLEBERERIE Monitoring the Handling of Complaints

Classification of investigation results

i g
oy

“Unsubstantiated”

M 3B 5
“No Fault”

MERES

“Not Pursuable”

MG R EE
“Withdrawn”

M 3B 5
“No Fault”

N e A==
Sy

“Unsubstantiated”

MERIBE

“Not Pursuable”

A total of 361 Queries were raised by the IPCC in 2019/20 regarding the
classification of findings, of which 212 required further actions by CAPO
and in consequence, the investigation results of 220 allegations were
reclassified, including:

TN MESRABEE
to “Substantiated”
G P
to “Substantiated”
LT MERABE
to “Substantiated”
LT MEERBE
to “Substantiated”
MEA kR
to ! “Unsubstantiated”
MEA R
to “No Fault”
S (B
to “False”

Independent Police Complaints Council | Report 2019/20
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BN BENFAREE2E TR
The following table shows the breakdown of figures regarding changes of classifications:

2019/20 FEEEFBBNBRERESR
Changes of classification endorsed by the IPCCin 2019/20

RESHE Final classification

. \|iERE L P ‘
ﬁﬁ{ﬁiﬁ EEPEE EREE mLEE WiEiBsE ERTE ’I“/Not_ 53 (| EEE S
Original Substantiated Not Fully Unsubstantiated No Fault False P bl Withdrawn Total
classification Substantiated ursuable
EEHEE
Substantiated - 0 1 0 0 0 0 1
mETR
HEBE
Not Fully 1 - 0 0 0 0 0 1
Substantiated
mLHEE
Unsubstantiated 23 1 - 69 5 3 0 101
RIESEE B
No Fault 10 0 17 9 6 3 45
§ﬁ$ﬁ 0 0 0 0 B 5 0 5
alse
wmABE
Not Pursuable 1 1 1 38 6 - 3 50
KR
Withdrawn 3 0 0 17 0 0 - 20
Hag
Total 38 2 19 124 20 1 6 220

L5 BESFERRBBT 19 TRERIR  Moreover, the IPCC endorsed 19 counts of “Substantiated Other Than
BRPBE) NiEZE > ERPARERKE Reported” allegations; of these, five were registered after the IPCC raised
LERUEHEMEMA - ZI9E/\RE  Queries. Another eight incidents were recorded as “Outwith” matters*.
frictks 15X HIE) *o

*TEXERE REENERCERERECHNEE - GLEFEARATBREFRIRE » BRRFABTLERTME
* An “Outwith” matter refers to any breach of discipline or Police Force orders that has been disclosed in the course of a complaint investigation but is not closely
related to the complaint.

48 BUBREHSRERFESS | 2019/20 TERE



BEERERNERFNES

RiE (BEEHEG) B8FE(1)(0) BES
ARMERERIIZF P55 KR
HNRERIFTEZE > MEHRRERM/
HITHREFHER - REHARN > EEG
MRS ERERMEFIELT 178EZ -

e p——

$B”E Chapter2
BLEBERERIE Monitoring the Handling of Complaints

Recommended improvements to police practices and
procedures

Under section 8(1)(c) of the IPCCO, the IPCC may make recommendations
to the Commissioner of Police and/or the Chief Executive if it identifies any
fault or deficiency in a police practice or procedure that has led to or might
lead to a complaint. During this reporting period, the IPCC suggested 17
improvement measures to the Police.

BREBERMERF

Ea R ERRIBHES - LT
BRFERS RN EBABETERER -
EEEEREREGERNER - EH
R BREENEMEA/NE -

EL 8K
o =

Compliance with police practices and procedures

The IPCC may raise Queries with CAPO to ascertain if the police officers
involved in a complaint case have complied with relevant police practices
and procedures in exercising their constabulary powers. During this
reporting period, eight Queries were raised under this category.

TEEENER
EZYTMIEHASERDRNLRE
o MEMA BEEANEHABEER
SRBNBHRHTIELH o

Reasons for exercising police power

The use of police power by officers in the discharge of their duties is also
a concern of the IPCC. During this reporting period, the IPCC raised two
Queries with respect to reasons for the use of police power.

HEREERASNTHREER

HAMERASE M A FEMCRITE
BEBRRROBE  EEZENAME
RARERNVTHREER > fIWTH
EEABERMBEANEEMLS - REH
W BEEEEMAMERREL 16REH o

Comments on actions against defaulting officers

While the dispensing of advice or disciplinary action to police officers is a
matter for the Commissioner of Police, the IPCC will examine the actions
taken or to be taken to ascertain whether they commensurate with the
seriousness of the offences. The IPCC raised 16 Queries on such actions
during the reporting period.

BARERSEH

REMA ELERRFBERENS
MBI - HIRE T 628THEH - Bl
MERRFERRARFNERREES
B o

Clarification of information in investigation reports

During this reporting period, the IPCC raised 628 Queries regarding
the ambiguous points in investigation reports. For example, CAPO was
requested to provide more background information of complaint cases.

EHE

WEHA > BEEGHIRERIS5S5BEMBAE
BHEENGSR > MERRHFHERRMH
ERMERANGTE > HIMNEREAMK
EELEESF o

Investigation thoroughness

During this reporting period, the IPCC raised 155 Queries regarding the
thoroughness of police investigations. These Queries included requests to
CAPO for more in-depth investigation by conducting interview with witness
and collection of more evidence.

Independent Police Complaints Council | Report 2019/20
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B ERFAREE

Time required for examining complaint cases

BRRHERMEAHNETRABERNERE
Bh EEERERAERFERRNER
FLZERAEME - CEEMIEENK
i BfE TBBMEASNER REREXR
i HIERIE  IUABEER2EAETRIER
MEEENRFER  HEEHEER B
EEBTRE

BRERENTIIPAE B #BE2018/19FE
78R EFAE2019/20FER 125K ©

BiEAEE

Observers Scheme

2019/20 Hsz4a gy
Total number of observation

2019205 E » EEENZRERBREHE
TTLI27RER > REFLAI135% &
RRALZHNE2,117R > REFRHMNE0
R o ME2,127 RBEEH > LA RNEBRERES
| > HER631 RERREBUERNTIE -

AAZHNREHENEENSERT

Number of scheduled observations and
observations without prior appointment

2019/20
fa5% %5k Scheduled 2,117
RETEHN
Without prior 10
appointment
4% Total 2,127

BUSBRESRERHFEES | 2019/20 TERE

2,127

The number of days required to examine a complaint case depends on a
number of factors, such as the complexity of the case and whether the IPCC
agrees with CAPO’s views. Complaints that are relatively minor or frivolous in
nature are handled via “Informal Resolution” and Expression of Dissatisfaction
Mechanism. The complaint cases requiring full investigation are of a more
complicated nature and it is more time consuming to meticulously scrutinise
this type of complaint cases.

The average number of days required to examine an investigated case
increased from 78 days in 2018/19 to 125 days in 2019/20.

2018/19 HRER4EE
Total number of observation

1,874

Under the Observers Scheme, 2,127 observations were conducted by
Members and Observers of the IPCC in the year 2019/20, representing a
13.5% increase compared to last year. Among them, 2,117 were scheduled
observations and 10 were conducted without prior appointment. Of the
2,127 observations, 1,496 involved the conducting of interviews and 631
involved the collection of evidence.

H=emMERRE T EFNIIEHTF
Number of observations of interviews and
collection of evidence
2018/19 2019/20 2018/19
1,841 BZ=EH Interviews 1,496 1,629
EBRWE
33 Collection of 631 245
evidence
1,874 8% Total 2,127 1,874




BRIRERFRRVIAH
Notifications from CAPO

BREHERRRREENNHT

% Chapter2
BLEBERERIE Monitoring the Handling of Complaints

Number of observations attended by IPCC Observers and

notifications received

HE#R22 Observations attended

BB Notifications received

HELEE (B mgiEn)

2019/20 2018/19
2,127 1,874
2,204 1,969
96.5% 95.2%

Attendance rate (Observations / Notifications received)

BRAFERAGEEEITHERT » NE
TEESERERER > KTEEEARADRN
LBNBERIIEAD o TE2019/205 K » &g
BERFERR2,204TEA o

AXBRESHRN  EETBEREHET 2,127
RER CRBERGENERKRE  HE
RRIEAE96.5%  HELRBEAF EHT
1.3% e

AN G iR
Notifiable Complaints

ANMGIRFERBF

CAPO has agreed that, insofar as practicable, the IPCC will be notified
at least 48 hours in advance of any impending interview or collection of
evidence. In 2019/20, 2,204 notifications were received from CAPO.

During this reporting period, IPCC Observers attended 2,127 observations,
including interviews and the collection of evidence, comprising 96.5% of
the notifications received. The attendance rate increased by 1.3% compared
to last year.

Number of Notifiable Complaint cases

REEEERNANGRFER

Notifiable Complaint cases examined by the IPCC

ENREARERRSR

2019/20 2018/19
1,686 617
6 2

Cases re-categorised as Reportable Complaints

Independent Police Complaints Council | Report 2019/20
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RE (BEEEHEO) BoMK > RFERR
AEHMEZERIEANERFANERRK
ELUMRAR » WERRZRFRESEN
GRFHIER - EHEEEZRAERKRKE
BEAABRRRST > BERRFERRF
HEEHNESE > RFERRATRENEE
ZERRESHERE o

AREMN BEETERT 1,686 RANE
RFFVERERE  REFERI LFA173.3%
KERE HRARRHEREEE SR
ZBEMBESAERKF

RIE R it 5l

Under section 9 of the IPCCO, CAPO must regularly submit a summary
of Notifiable Complaints to the IPCC for examination and explain the
reasons for categorising the complaints as Notifiable Complaints. If the
IPCC considers that any of these cases should be classified as Reportable
Complaints instead, the IPCC will give suggestions to CAPO accordingly,
and CAPO will then need to reconsider the categorisation.

During the reporting period, summaries of 1,686 Notifiable Complaints
were examined by the IPCC, an increase of 173.3% compared to the
previous year. After examination, six cases were re-categorised as
Reportable Complaints as per the IPCC’'s recommendations.

Expression of Dissatisfaction Mechanism (EDM)

AEANEEHEEMIRFERMNER

BF > BEGMKRFERRN2015F3|A
RENMES > FEXNRFEFLUS 0 2

BiF AR ERIBEMIRF S —TREE o

ERGIT » FHRFNHREBBIKHER
RBETMEERERAAHAEENEEER
[RBR o fNig R AR B R ER M H EIER
AFEER » TFREREHRUERNKFHAN
RRIERER o HEERN I HRERRERSE
e RFEEXFTEHRIAMERET R
HHIERNTIRTFELEGEX

AREHN > EEGHIER T 528REH
RETHAHHEENER  BEFTKRT
25.6% © ﬁ%%ﬁ%@%’fﬂﬁ H = REZF
RELERERENREARERRSR

o= E
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To handle minor complaints more effectively and make optimal use of
investigation resources, the IPCC and CAPO introduced the EDM in 2015 as
an alternative to the formal complaint investigation process for handling
minor complaints.

Through the EDM, a Complainant can directly reflect his/her dissatisfaction
and views to the commander of the Formation concerned. If the
Complainant is still not satisfied with the results of the EDM, he/she may
lodge a formal complaint. In order to maintain the integrity of the EDM and
ensure appropriate categorisation, CAPO is required to regularly submit a
gist of the EDM cases to the IPCC for vetting.

During the reporting period, the IPCC examined 528 EDM cases, a decrease
of 25.6% compared to the previous year. Among these cases, three
cases were re-categorised as Reportable Complaints as per the IPCC's
recommendations.



RIEFREFNEREAF
Number of EDM cases

REZEEZNRET MIEHIEZR
EDM cases examined by the IPCC

EMBESRERRF

Cases re-categorised as Reportable Complaints

ENBRESANERF

Cases re-categorised as Notifiable Complaints

% Chapter2
BLEBERERIE Monitoring the Handling of Complaints

2019/20 2018/19
528 710
3 8
0 1

52018/ 19 EENHFEREH I ERKERRE » FLGERE -
Note: Figures for 2018/19 have been adjusted following case examination.

NREH
Public enquiries

RIEBERE  BEEERUTIAEEEM
TROGAEHHAREER - TREH
N BEEGHIRASISRAREBRE
A EF B BERREBNES © IF
HMYEELEEEERBAGENERI - HER
BRAREAREE - MERBRFERES
B SERHFEENEREHIFEAN
BER > §AERBRFAENRREEE K
BRFIRIE o

In order to enhance transparency, the IPCC has set up various channels
for the public to put up enquiries or express their opinion. During the
reporting period, the IPCC received 52,335 public enquiries via telephone,
post, email, fax and in person. Excluding enquiries that are not directly
related to the IPCC, those regarding the public order events, the two-tier
police complaints system, including those relating to complaint cases
and the Observers Scheme, were handled and followed up within the
timeframe specified under the IPCC’s performance pledge.

Independent Police Complaints Council | Report 2019/20
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BE—
Case 1

private purposes

FraEERREFRFNEATSRELARSE

Used personal data collected inappropriately for

iE s &
s WA g B BEHE
Allegation Complainee(s) bt Ee T Final classification(s)
egatio omplainee byCAPO dal Cla catio
1 TARE ERPEE EEABE
Misconduct Substantiated Substantiated
5
2 IALE Police Constable RECERETBABE
Misconduct - Substantiated Other
Than Reported
EES=3= Case background

RIFAE 1999 1 ]RE - IHHHRIKER
ERE > WEEFTAKERERA  HIREHFA
HHMEBASIERE - AEHME > KR
AR RFARMEET BN ERER TR
AT - MUFACE - IEHER > RIFA
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The Complainant (COM) made a “999” report that her younger sister
relapsed into an anxiety disorder and attacked COM at their residence. The
Complainee (COMEE) and other police officers attended the scene. During
enquiry, COM provided her Hong Kong Identity Card number and her
mobile phone number to COMEE for record purpose. After enquiry, COM’s
sister was sent to hospital for medical treatment.

COM later received dozens of calls and WhatsApp messages from different
unknown phone numbers. COM picked up one of the calls, in which a
male told COM his name and said he was one of the officers who had
handled COM’s report earlier that day (note: during CAPO’s investigation,
COMEE admitted that he was the male calling COM). He also told COM
that he could help her deal with her family matters. After this call, COM
continued to receive phone calls and WhatsApp messages from different
telephone numbers. COM noticed that the WhatsApp accounts of these
phone numbers either showed COMEE’s name or COMEE’s appearance.
COM thus believed that all these phone calls and messages were from
COMEE.

A few days later, when COM returned home, a security guard gave her
a note and stated that a police officer called at the security post earlier
leaving his surname and phone number and requested the security guard
to ask COM to call back (note: CAPO found that the phone number on
the note was a number used by COMEE. The surname, however, did not
belong to COMEE. Instead, it belonged to his colleague who attended
COM’s residence together with COMEE to handle COM’s police report
earlier). COM ignored the note and did not return call.

Disturbed by the calls and messages, COM lodged the instant complaint
alleging that COMEE had misused her personal data by contacting her
through mobile phone and trying to court her [Allegation 1: Misconduct].
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After lodging the complaint, COM started to receive some dunning
messages from other unknown phone numbers, but neither she nor her
family members were in debt.

CAPOQ’s investigation

COMEE admitted that he had called and sent messages to COM through
some different phone numbers in order to court her. By offering COM his
assistance in dealing with her family matters, he wished to make friend
and to maintain contact with her. COMEE also admitted having called at
the security post and left a message to the security guard for COM’s return
call. He, however, denied having used the surname of his colleague in
identifying himself or used other phone numbers to send debt collecting
messages to COM after COM had lodged the complaint. As to the debt
collecting messages sent to COM, CAPO’s enquiry revealed that they were
sent from prepaid SIM cards which had no subscriber information. There
was no evidence to prove the connection between COMEE and those
phone calls.

According to the Police General Orders, a police officer shall not use personal
data collected during the execution of official duties for any purposes other
than for which they were collected or a purpose directly related to that
purpose, unless prescribed consent has been obtained from the data subject.

Based on COM’s complaint information, the records of the phone calls
and WhatsApp messages and COMEE’s admission to the allegation,
CAPO concluded that COMEE breached the Police General Orders by
misusing COM’s personal data to court her and classified Allegation 1
as “Substantiated”. Given the seriousness of the misconduct, CAPO
considered that a disciplinary review against COMEE was warranted.

IPCC’s observation

While agreeing with CAPO’s finding on Allegation 1, the IPCC requested
CAPO to address the note given to COM through the security guard. The
call record of COMEE’s phone number indicated that there was a call
made from his phone number to the security post of COM’s building at the
material time, and the security guard had contemporaneously jotted down
on the note the phone number provided by the caller looking for COM,
which belonged to COMEE. The IPCC therefore considered that despite
COMEE’s denial of the allegation, there was evidence showing that COMEE
had pretended to be his colleague in his attempt to contact COM via the
security guard.

The IPCC thus recommended that CAPO register one count of
“Substantiated Other Than Reported” (Allegation 2) against COMEE,
and address such misconduct in the disciplinary review against COMEE
as well. CAPO subscribed to the IPCC’s view. The IPCC endorsed the
aforementioned classifications of the allegations and the penalty awarded
to COMEE.

Independent Police Complaints Council | Report 2019/20
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Case 2

Failing to maintain the “Wanted Person” records properly
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Case background

The Complainant (COM) was initially placed on the “Wanted List” by the
Police for an outstanding fine payment stemming from a conviction in
relation to minor traffic offence. COM eventually settled the payment
and the court informed the Central Traffic Prosecution Division (CTPD)
of Police by memorandum to remove COM from the “Wanted List”. The
Clerical Assistant (CA) at CTPD, a member of the Force, was responsible for
following up on this action.

A few years later, COM made a lost property report to the Police. The Police
noticed COM’s wanted status and arrested COM for non-payment of fine.
Upon clarification with CTPD that the warrant against COM had already
been cancelled by the court, COM was released unconditionally.

COM lodged the instant complaint alleging that the CA (COMEE) had failed
to remove him from the “Wanted List” after he had settled the outstanding
fine payment [Allegation: Neglect of Duty].

CAPOQ’s investigation

COM later on decided to withdraw the complaint. Given that the case was
supported by prima facie evidence, CAPO proceeded with the investigation.
When interviewed by CAPO, COMEE admitted that she had overlooked
COM’s “Wanted” status in the computer system when she received the
memorandum from the court. Thus, she did not notify her supervisor of
the matter nor did she request the Criminal Records Bureau to remove
COM from the “Wanted List”.

CAPOQ classified the allegation as “Substantiated” and proposed a “Warning
without Divisional Record File (DRF) Entry” against COMEE.
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IPCC’s observation

The IPCC agreed with the classification of the allegation. Nevertheless, the
IPCC was of the view that COMEE’s mistake was serious as it had caused
COM to remain on the “Wanted List” for several years, which eventually
resulted in the unnecessary arrest of COM. As a result, the level of action
against COMEE should be escalated to sufficiently reflect the seriousness
of the incident.

CAPO subscribed to the IPCC’s view and escalated the level of action to
“Written Warning” in light of the severity of COMEE’s negligence.

In order to address the apparent shortfall in the procedure, CTPD also took
the initiative to introduce the following enhancement measures: (1) all
court cancellation memorandum should be routed to the supervisor first
(i.e. the Officer-in-charge of the Registry) for assignment; (2) a duty Police
Constable at CTPD would cross check the computer system and ensure the
deletion actions have been taken.
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Case 3

time bar period

Failing to file prosecution for careless driving within the
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Case background

The Complainant (COM) was driving a minibus on a road when a private
car suddenly emerged from a slip road and crashed with COM’s minibus.
While waiting for the Police, COM noticed that there was a passenger (AP1)
in the private car besides the driver (AP2). During Police investigation,
AP1 claimed himself was the driver of the private car. COM immediately
pointed out to the police officer that AP2 instead of AP1 was the driver. As
a result, AP1 and AP2 were arrested for “Conspiracy to Pervert the Course
of Justice”. As AP2 did not hold a valid driving licence, AP2 was also
arrested for “Driving Without a Driving Licence” and “Driving Without Third
Party Insurance”.

District Investigation Team was responsible for making enquiry into the
criminal offence of “Conspiracy to Pervert the Course of Justice” whereas
an Inspector (IP) from the Accident Investigation Team was assigned as the
Officer-in-charge for investigation of the traffic-related offences.

After initial investigation, evidence revealed that AP2 had committed
“Careless Driving”, “Driving Without a Driving Licence” and “Driving Without
Third Party Insurance”. The IP referred the traffic case to the crime team for
seeking legal advice from Department of Justice (DoJ) on the three traffic
offences together with the criminal offence of “Conspiracy to Pervert the

Course of Justice”.

Having examined the case documents, Do) found that one page of AP2’s
cautioned statement in respect of the offence of “Careless Driving” was
missing. Do) requested the Police to resubmit the case with the missing
page for further consideration. According to Do), the offence of “Careless
Driving” might be laid against AP2 upon conclusion of the crime case
(“Conspiracy to Pervert the Course of Justice”) against him. As a result,
AP1 and AP2 were charged with the offence of “Conspiracy to Pervert the
Course of Justice”, and the offences of “Driving without a Driving Licence”
and “Driving without Third Party Insurance” against AP2 were proceeded.
AP1 and AP2 were subsequently convicted of their respective charges
after trial.
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After the court case was concluded, the IP did not follow up with the
offence of “Careless Driving” against AP2 and filed away the case with no
further action taken. According to COM, he had filed an insurance claim
in respect of the traffic accident but the insurance company rejected
him on the ground that AP2 was not summonsed for “Careless Driving”.
Dissatisfied, COM lodged a complaint against the IP (Complainee) for
failure to prosecute AP2 for “Careless Driving”.

CAPO’s investigation

When the Complainee (COMEE) was interviewed by CAPO, he said that
it was COM rather than the driver of the private car who should be held
liable for the traffic accident, and his team did not find any independent
evidence to support or negate either party’s version about the cause of the
accident. COMEE considered that on the balance of probabilities, there
was no conclusive evidence to proceed with the prosecution relating to the
offence of “Careless Driving”.

However, CAPO noticed that COMEE concluded the preliminary investigation
by stating that AP2 rather than COM was at fault for causing the accident.
COMEE failed to explain his inconsistent assessment on the cause of the
accident. CAPO considered that COMEE’s subsequent explanation for not
proceeding with the charge on “Careless Driving” against AP2 was not
convincing.

CAPO further found out that COMEE did not follow up the said offence
against AP2 after receiving DoJ’'s comments on the missing page of the
cautioned statement for “Careless Driving”. The investigation of the traffic
accident had been left idle for four months before COMEE recommended
to his supervisor that the case be closed and filed away.

CAPO opined that COMEE lacked professionalism in taking timely or
reasonable actions to deal with the entire traffic case, in particular
his inaction to investigate the offence of “Careless Driving”. The
complaint was classified as “Substantiated” and an “Advice without DRF
Entry” against COMEE was proposed.

IPCC’s observation

Whilst the IPCC agreed with CAPO’s classification of investigation results,
the Council had reservation about the proposed action against COMEE.

The IPCC took note that COMEE specially highlighted in his initial
investigation that AP2 had driven without due observation of COM’s
minibus leading to the collision. It was reasonably expected that COMEE
should summon AP2 for the offence of “Careless Driving”.

Independent Police Complaints Council | Report 2019/20
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COMEE could have pursued the offence of “Careless Driving” against
AP2 even after the other offences against AP1T and AP2 were concluded.
Nevertheless, COMEE took no further action thereafter. Eventually,
AP2 could no longer be summonsed for “Careless Driving” since the
prosecution time bar period of six months had already lapsed.

After careful consideration, the IPCC was of the view that the level of action
against COMEE should be escalated to “Warning with DRF Entry” to reflect
the seriousness of the misconduct. After Queries, CAPO subscribed to
IPCC's recommendation and considered that a “Warning with DRF Entry”
would be appropriate to serve as an alert to officers to prevent recurrence.
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Case 4 . . . .
Making a police report for failure to beat a toy grabbing
machine
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The Complainant (COM) and her son went to play toy grabbing machine in
a shop. After losing the game, COM had a dispute with the shop staff and
called a nearby report room to make a “Dispute” report. A police officer
(Complainee) answered her call and explained to COM that her case was a
consumer dispute and advised her to seek assistance from the Consumer
Council. However, COM insisted on police attendance. The Complainee
(COMEE) thus assigned police officers to attend the scene. While the police
officers were on their way to the scene, COM called the police station again
saying that police assistance was no longer required as it was inconvenient
for her and her son to stay at the shop and wait for the Police’s arrival.

COM lodged a complaint on the same day, alleging that COMEE had
treated her impolitely by uttering “you insisted that police assistance was
required, now you say it is no longer needed” [Allegation 1: Impoliteness]
and failed to handle her report properly [Allegation 2: Neglect of Duty].
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CAPO’s investigation

After receiving this complaint, CAPO called COM via Telephone
Recording System four times but the calls were not answered.
Since COM did not provide other means of contact, CAPO therefore
classified both allegations as “Not Pursuable”.

IPCC’s observation

Having examined the available evidence, in particular the audio recording
of the conversations between COM and COMEE, the IPCC considered that
even without the assistance of COM, a definite finding could be reached for
both Allegations 1 and 2.

Regarding Allegation 1, the audio recording was examined. The IPCC noted
that COM insisted on police attendance despite COMEE’s explanation that
her case was a consumer dispute. Throughout the audio recording, COMEE
was neither impolite nor unprofessional to COM.

As to Allegation 2, the police records showed that COMEE did deploy
police officers to the scene to handle COM’s report. There was no evidence
showing any negligence on COMEF’s part. All the evidence rebutted COM’s
allegations.

Having considered the above-mentioned evidence, the IPCC was of
the view that a definite finding for the complaint could be reached and
recommended CAPO to revisit the classification of Allegations 1 and 2.
CAPO reclassified the two allegations as “No Fault” and IPCC endorsed
the case.

Independent Police Complaints Council | Report 2019/20

63



64

ERERNEFNSES

Recommended improvements to Police practices and procedures

BT (EEEHRM) B8F(1)(0) BB
fE > BEGNBERABRRRKRSNE > 5%R
ERERNEFEREARRATEZR °
CERAESREATTHNNERZ - H
B EECTERE FHERSTEBEROR
ETFER RAKKERRBITNFE
BEER EREHERAEEZNGE
B LE—PRAEBHNRBER -

ELERBRSHAMESRE T 17ESE
B BEBRRTEARKEARKEAE
FREEEAR > EETRIWBEEER
BAER - Bl (=) meg (RBEFFM)
w3 R KRR RER TREBIMETIE
BhEtE AR ; (2) MRRERETR
EHNCHNERARURSAHLRT
Uk (Z) MBREAREFIEIREFAR
R IEEMAFRITRHIGEESE o

TR ERZEKRERKFERNRE o

BZRAERE
Review |
investigation reports |

HHERTIME |
ERNTRZE
Identify any deficiency \
in Police practices

BUBERESRERFEES | 2019/20 TIFRE

To discharge the function under section 8(1)(c) of the IPCCO, the IPCC
makes timely and practical recommendations to the Police whenever
it identifies any fault or deficiency in the Police practices or procedures
while vetting the Reportable Complaint reports. The IPCC will then monitor
implementation status of the improvement-related matters by the Police
via the “Post-endorsement Issues Follow-up” and quarterly Joint Meetings
with CAPO, with a view to enhancing Police’s service quality.

During the reporting period, the IPCC made 17 improvement
recommendations to the Police. These recommendations were not merely
correlated with complaint cases and enhancement of the Police service
quality, but also closely linked to the daily life of members of the public,
including: (1) enhance guidelines of Traffic Procedures Manual to reduce
complaints and promote effectiveness of the “Traffic Accident Victims
Assistance Scheme”; (2) enhance record keeping and monitoring system
for correspondence handled by the Police for betterment of public service;
and (3) enhance guidance on police procedures to enable officers serving
proper traffic offence-related charges.

Below are examples of improvement recommendations illustrated by
related complaint cases.

RAERRBER
Enhance Police’s
service quality
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Make
recommendations



1 g (RBEEFFM) 5514
ALk RiEE TREREIME
TRBEHEl BURNRK

ERRBERIITEERTEZEALET
BUORAIREERR - RBEIRZEAA
AHERNE HE) #F (RBRIMS
THEyEE) (5t8) » LWESRENEE
BB HESEANARENEEEE -
E£2018/19% M » MEHZ EHBN BRI
BTABAEI,278 AN MABLERE AR
MEB S BEE2.802F BT (BRK
RHEERN (REEIMETENES
2018/19FEF#HK) ) - E—MRIBRT > &
ERERERINEF A TR RI &
BENREAN - BRSO REBRELH
o BRRTFHE  UXFREANER
FHEF o A » BEEEEHED > EHAET
SEBEUET (REBEREFFM) FAIRENH
PREZIEFT BT » AkMEREHFARE
IR

WEPAN—RERT > RHFARNLE
BRERARE mMAK —REBAER
M EF ASRERO M - 3617 B it 3R % 5t 8
B THIZERER (RE) FRMBHEAE
Ko (B RISEHMBBIEM - RIERE
HREANERREREE > URMHZEABA
BHRERBREINENR > MERBIBAUHE
FERKREE > URIRBRINEE
BEXEFHPIROEWRREL )
Rig (REREFFM) > FBRdFHRHOE
BUOAERIISEERCEIFRAEZIL
RRIGILE - AT > RAFARRIZIHLE
BA O HER AR EE—EFBRAER
RBERRE - K ABRFLKRR > 151F
ZREBGANEBMLEREERE o

ELEREBERESNVIESIEREER
LHERFABERRABEZREZERKR
M-ER BIEREHFRBEHNE
BIBMERIIFEER—EFBATH ° &
BEBAERT  BAMHREEZTHL
B IS ERNRRER > MERBZETF
A EtHERBERIIEERMKE
RERBRIME - ZBREBABE—I K
T BME—EFRREAKENSLE
MERE  BRALBRXTRE A
e EEtEFLERRETR  HER

B —RERE > ERBEIEEN—
BF+B%& - At > ZREBAERBKEF
RERBHIFERTIA TEERBEE) o

g5 —=z

$=% Chapter3

BERFERRNEEZ Complaint Cases and Recommended Improvements

1 Enhance guidelines of Traffic Procedures Manual to
reduce complaints and promote effectiveness of the
“Traffic Accident Victims Assistance Scheme”

Road traffic accidents could lead to deaths, physical and psychological
injuries, and financial losses to the involved parties. Under the Traffic
Accident Victims Assistance Scheme (TAVAS), victims of traffic accidents
may apply for speedy financial aid through the Social Welfare Department
(SWD) to alleviate financial burden on themselves and their families. In
year 2018/19, 19,278 cases of traffic casualties were reported to the Police
and the assistance paid to these victims amounted to HK$280.2 million
(Source: Traffic Accident Victims Assistance Fund Annual Report 2018/19
published by the SWD). Normally, the police officer who investigates
the traffic accidents will introduce the scheme to the victims at the first
opportunity. Relevant forms have to be coordinated and submitted by the
Police to SWD as support for victim’s formal application. Nevertheless,
the IPCC observed that police officers might have difficulties in meeting
the timeframe, as set out in the Traffic Procedures Manual (TPM), for the
handling of the forms under the TAVAS, which could give rise to complaints
against the officers.

During the reporting period, there was a case at which the Complainant
(COM) was hit by a taxi and sent to hospital for treatment. Two days later, a
Police Constable (PC) took a statement from COM and assisted her in filling
in her personal information in Part A of a “Preliminary Application Form” (the
Form) under the TAVAS. (Note: The Form comprises two parts. Part A of the
Form is to be completed and signed by the victim to provide the victim’s
personal information and the traffic accident information; whereas Part B of
the Form is to be completed and signed by the Police to confirm the traffic
accident details including the insurance information of the vehicle involved
in the traffic accident.) According to TPM, the Form in respect of non-fatal
incidents has to be completed and referred to SWD within seven working
days of the accident concerned. COM, however, was subsequently informed
by SWD that the Police submitted the Form one and a half months after the
accident. COM therefore lodged the instant complaint against the PC for
the delay in the handling of her Form.

Upon examination of facts against the prevailing police guidelines, IPCC
found that Part A of the Form had been timely completed and signed by
COM. However, Part B of the Form containing insurance information of
vehicle involved in the accident was only completed one and a half months
after the date of incident. The PC claimed that he submitted the Form to
the SWD two days after the traffic accident, even though he had not yet
obtained the required insurance information from the taxi driver concerned
and Part B of the Form was incomplete. The PC further stated that he
submitted the Form to the SWD again one and a half months later when he
obtained the necessary information from the driver. Nevertheless, enquiry
with SWD revealed that SWD only received the Form one time, i.e. one and
a half months after the traffic accident. The allegation that the PC failed to
handle the Form timely was therefore classified as “Substantiated”.
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While examining the complaint, the IPCC noticed that in some cases,
drivers involved in traffic accidents might have delayed when providing
their vehicle insurance information, resulting that the frontline officers
could not submit complete Forms to the SWD within the timeframe
required by the TPM.

At IPCC’s recommendations, the Traffic Branch Headquarters (TBHQ)
conducted a review on the relevant provisions in the TPM and revised the
guidelines by providing a clearer definition on the timeframes required
for submitting the Forms to SWD. In addition, the revised TPM also allows
officers to supplement insurance information to SWD once available
afterwards. Following the enhancement of TPM guidelines, TBHQ also
launched an outreach programme and conducted internal training to
alert frontline officers of the aforesaid enhancement and remind frontline
officers that they may exercise power under Motor Vehicles Insurance (Third
Party Risks) Ordinance to demand drivers to provide vehicle insurance
information within five working days if deemed necessary. The new
guidelines provide clearer instructions to the frontline officers to carry out
their duties and ensure that the TAVAS Forms of the traffic accident victims
be processed in a timely manner.
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2 Enhance record keeping and monitoring system for
correspondence handled by the Police for betterment of
public service

There is a significant amount of correspondence and incoming enquiries
handled by the Police from members of the public every day. A proper record
keeping system will ensure such correspondence can be traced and handled
properly to facilitate performance of duties by police officers efficiently.

In a complaint case involving the handling of incoming mail, the Complainant
(COM), a victim injured in a traffic accident, sent a double registered mail to
an investigation unit of the Traffic Formation to apply for the “Traffic Accident
Victims Assistance Preliminary Application” upon the conclusion of the traffic
case investigation. The Clerical Assistant (CA) of the General Registry of the
Traffic Formation received the mail and stamped the office chop on the mail
receipt. Subsequently, COM received a confirmation of successful delivery of
his mail to the Traffic Formation from Hong Kong Post. Not hearing any reply
from the Police about his application after a while, COM lodged a complaint
that the Police failed to handle his mail properly [Allegation: Neglect of Duty].
It was later found out that COM’s mail never reached the related traffic team
for processing and no movement record regarding this mail had been kept by
the Traffic Formation.

CAPQ’s investigation revealed that COM’s mail might have been lost while
being processed by the CA. To prevent the recurrence of such incidents,
CAPO issued a Service Quality Advice to five Traffic Formations with a view
to improving the existing incoming mail handling procedures and helping to
track down the whereabouts of the correspondence/documents during the
internal transferal process.

After reviewing CAPO’s investigation report, the IPCC considered that the
absence of a proper mail movement register in the Traffic Formation might
also lead to the mishandling of COM’s letter. The IPCC was of the view that
from time to time, there were complaint cases arising from the mishandling
of the correspondence between the Police and members of the public.
However, CAPO was unable to identify what was wrong in the process and
who should be held responsible for the missing mails as there was no
effective mechanism for the Police Formations/police stations to locate all
incoming and outgoing correspondence.

Whilst CAPO had requested the five Traffic Formations to improve their
incoming mail handling procedures, the IPCC considered that this type of
complaints was not limited to the incoming mail handling practice and traffic
units but also the outgoing mail and other Formations which had frequent
contacts with members of the public.

From a complaint prevention perspective, the IPCC recommended the Police
to devise a standard Force-wide practice or procedures on maintaining
a proper record of all incoming and outgoing correspondence between
Police and members of public, so as to keep track of the movements of
the correspondence and avoid any possible misunderstanding. The Police
accepted the IPCC's recommendation and agreed to review and enhance
the mail handling procedures. The IPCC will continue to monitor the follow-
up actions taken by the Police and the implementation of the enhanced
procedures.
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3 Enhance guidance on police procedures to enable
officers serving proper traffic offence-related charges

According to Government policy on Frontier Closed Area, drivers must
obtain “Closed Road Permit” from the Transport Department on grounds of
need pursuant to Regulation 27 of Road Traffic (Traffic Control) Regulations
(Cap. 374G). People in possession of the “Closed Road Permits” must
comply with conditions of the permit under Regulation 49(5) of Road Traffic
(Registration and Licensing of Vehicles) Regulation (Cap. 374E).

In a complaint case, the Complainant (COM) drove a light goods vehicle
(LGV) on a closed road and was intercepted by a Senior Police Constable
(SPC). Upon the SPC’s request, COM produced his “Closed Road Permit” to
the SPC for inspection. However, his permit did not record the registration
mark of his LGV. Instead, the permit clearly stated that reference should
be made to an approval letter issued by the Transport Department for
the registration mark(s) of the permitted vehicle(s). A condition was also
printed on the reverse side of the permit that the approval letter should be
produced upon request by the Police. Since COM was unable to produce
his approval letter on the spot, the SPC ticketed him for “Driving on Closed
Road without Permit”.

Later, COM made request to the Central Traffic Prosecutions Division (CTPD)
twice to review the ticket against him but CTPD decided to proceed with
the ticket after reviews. COM produced to CTPD his approval letter which
clearly stated that the LGV was permitted to enter the closed road. In the
second review which was handled by a Chief Inspector (CIP), COM pointed
out that the offence he had committed should be “Failing to Comply
with Condition of Permit” rather than “Driving on Closed Road without
Permit”. COM argued that he held a valid permit and that he only failed
to comply with the condition by producing the approval letter to the SPC.
Nevertheless, having considered COM’s viewpoint, the CIP still refused to
amend the charge against COM.

COM pleaded not guilty to the offence of “Driving on Closed Road without
Permit”. Before trial, the Counsel on fiat took the initiative to amend the
charge to “Failing to Comply with Condition of Permit” which was accepted
by the Court. COM was convicted of the amended charge upon his guilty
plea. He subsequently lodged complaints against the SPC for failing to
ticket him appropriately and the CIP for failing to review his ticket properly
before deciding to proceed with the charge against him.

In the course of examining CAPQO’s investigation report, the IPCC observed
that COM had undoubtedly breached a condition of his permit when he
failed to produce the approval letter upon the SPC’s request. However,
this did not amount to driving without a permit. The IPCC considered that
the Counsel on fiat’s decision to amend the charge indicated that COM
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had indeed committed the offence of “Failing to Comply with Condition of
Permit” rather than “Driving on Closed Road without Permit”.

After discussion at a Working Level Meeting between the IPCC and CAPO
and upon further Query raised by the IPCC, the Police sought legal advice
from the Department of Justice (DoJ) as to what would be the appropriate
charge in similar cases. According to DoJ’s advice, offending drivers should
be summonsed for “Failing to Comply with Condition of Permit”.

The IPCC considered that the instant complaint revealed that it was
necessary to call for a review of guidance on Police procedures with respect
to serving proper charges on traffic offences related to the use of closed
road. The IPCC made recommendations that the Police should elaborate
the existing guidelines and review support on related traffic enforcement
actions, in particular assistance to be provided to frontline officers when
necessary. IPCC’s recommendations were accepted and enhancement
actions were taken by the Police to improve their capability in handling
similar situations effectively in future.
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In commemoration of its 10th Anniversary since IPCC became independent,
the Council held the IPCC Symposium 2019 and invited stakeholders from
Hong Kong, overseas and the Greater Bay Area to attend this occasion
with an aim to maintain close dialogue and keep abreast of the recent
development of oversight bodies’ work around the world. This would
facilitate the IPCC to look ahead of future direction and meet the rising
expectations of the community.

The IPCC also published a 10th Anniversary Commemorative Brochure to
provide an account of the Council’s development over the past decade
as well as its vision for the future to deepen the public understanding of
its work.

2019% 6B 6H
6 June 2019

IPCC SYMPOSIUM ENEE

4 & Building Confidence an
the Ev f | 4 Bole of IPCC in the Evolving Future |

The IPCC organised a symposium themed “Building Confidence and Trust —
Role of IPCC in the Evolving Future” on 6 June 2019, at the University of
Hong Kong. More than 300 eminent professionals from local, overseas
and the Greater Bay Area pooled their knowledge and valuable insights on
the development of oversight bodies at the event. The IPCC also took this
opportunity to review, evaluate and formulate its strategies for future.
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The Honourable Mrs Carrie Lam Cheng Yuet-ngor, GBM, GBS, the Chief
Executive of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region, officiated at
this event as the Guest of Honour and delivered the opening address. Dr
Anthony Francis Neoh, QC, SC, JP, IPCC Chairman, and Professor William
Hayward, Dean, Faculty of Social Sciences, the University of Hong Kong,
delivered welcoming remarks to attending guests. Furthermore, the
Honourable Mr Justice Robert Tang, GBM, SBS, JP, Non-Permanent Judge
of the Court of Final Appeal and former IPCC Chairman and Mrs Marion Lai
Chan Chi-kuen, GBS, JP, the then Permanent Secretary for Security were
invited to deliver the keynote speech and the closing speech respectively.
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MEERE—RINEERBERFTH > & The Symposium comprised a series of plenary sessions, aiming to
EHRBA BN > R ERERS  exchange and share knowledge and experience on various issues,
B~ FPHERMERE - MRBETHZE  including police oversight system, balancing police powers and civil rights,
EHEEEMFESHMEZRE - ASTEEE  enhancing mutual understanding, and building trust and confidence
—RBHIRNEREE > QFEEEEE  among members of society. Celebrated moderators and speakers
BEE - NMPIREERBAR ~ &AM attending this occasion included the current and former Chairmen of the
BE - RKEEMN - MEKX -~ WABNE  IPCC, representatives from Government departments and statutory bodies,
FIRRITTHERBEREERR > MUK~ local scholars, as well as representatives from oversight organisations in
EFEZERNEE o Australia, Canada, New Zealand, Macau SAR, and scholars from renowned
universities in the United Kingdom and the United States of America.
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TEEGMAE2019 ) WERFMBEEMNT  Details of the IPCC Symposium 2019 including biographies of moderators
BBRABREHEREFE > ELE  and speakers, presentation materials as well as event highlights have been
REZEME (https://www.ipcc.gov.hk/  uploaded to the IPCC website (https://www.ipcc.gov.hk/symposium2019/
symposium2019/view/index.html) o view/index.html).
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IPCC 10th Anniversary Commemorative Brochure
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In celebration of the 10th Anniversary since it became an independent
statutory body, the IPCC published the 10th Anniversary Commemorative
Brochure to account for its development, achievements and challenges
faced during the past decade with a fine collection of photos. Current
and former IPCC Chairmen also shared memorable moments during
their tenure, their thoughts as well as visions for the future of the IPCC.
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On 15 May 2020, the IPCC published its Thematic Study Report on the Public Order Events arising from the Fugitive Offenders Bill since June 2019 and
the Police Actions in Response.
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Since June 2019, Hong Kong has faced its most challenging public
order situation in a generation. The widespread protests were triggered
by the Fugitive Offenders and Mutual Legal Assistance in Criminal
Matters Legislation (Amendment) Bill (Fugitive Offenders Bill) which the
Government introduced into the Legislative Council in early 2019. Despite
the Government’s formal withdrawal of the Fugitive Offenders Bill in early
September 2019, the protests persisted until the COVID-19 pandemic
began to afflict Hong Kong in early 2020. Actions taken by the Police in
the course of handling the public order events (POEs) have given rise to
over 1,800 Reportable Complaints and Notifiable Complaints.

In view of such circumstances, the IPCC made a decision in July 2019
to carry out a Thematic Study covering several public order incidents
and selected issues in the period pursuant to section 8(2) of the IPCC
Ordinance (IPCCO), with the aim of gaining a broad picture of POEs. The
Study is intended to facilitate the Council in performing its function under
section 8(1)(a) of the IPCCO to review related Reportable Complaints
investigation reports based on evidence and in a fair and impartial
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manner. It is also intended to facilitate the Council in identifying any
practice or procedure adopted by the Police that has led to or might lead
to Reportable Complaints, and to make timely recommendations to the
Commissioner of Police (Commissioner) or the Chief Executive or both of
them in accordance with section 8(1)(c) of the IPCCO. Conducted within
the IPCC’s statutory framework, this Thematic Study is a fact-finding
exercise and not an attempt to address the conduct of individual officers
in the course of actions.

The IPCC adopted a holistic approach in reviewing the events and
issues in the ten-month long protest. First and foremost, the Council
visited its statutory powers, constraints and limitations to ensure it was
acting within the statutory remit in approaching the Study (Chapter 2).
The Study also gave a full picture of the protests and the complaints
they generated in an overview (Chapter 4) and a complaint synopsis
(Chapter 5).

The Thematic Study was unprecedented for the IPCC in terms of its
magnitude and complexity. One of the challenges was the massive
information needed in order to reconstruct and ascertain facts and
chronology of the POEs. The Thematic Study had received full support
and cooperation from the Chief Executive and the Commissioner who
pledged to provide all necessary resources and information to facilitate
the Study. Since the beginning of the Study, the IPCC has been in liaison
with the Police and paid six visits to different Police units to understand
more about their operations. The Police have been supportive and
provided the IPCC with various materials including documentary
materials, video footages and console records.

HEEZELERERBHMBHFEL > ARAHSERIARENRE > URMELEREBENRBNERRE o
IPCC Members visited the Police Tactical Unit Headquarters to observe operations of the Specialised Crowd Management Vehicles as well as
demonstration on equipment and use of weapons by riot police officers.
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IPCC Members visited San Uk Ling Holding Centre.
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In response to IPCC’s appeal for relevant information, much information
has also been provided voluntarily by other government departments,
public institutions, members of the public via the IPCC’s dedicated email,
hotline, and instant messaging platform. Through the said channels, the
IPCC was able to carry out the Study with the benefit of more than 1,350
news articles and 650 hours of video footage, as well as a total of 23,550
photo attachments and 22,533 video attachments / links received from
the public.

Led by the Task Force Steering Group (TFSG) comprising Chairmen of
Serious Complaints Committee, Operations Advisory Committee, Publicity
and Survey Committee, and Legal Committee, a special task force from the
Secretariat meticulously looked into the enormous amount of information
collected and carefully verified the information to enable the reconstruction
of relevant facts and chronology. A total of 34 internal meetings and
briefings in relation to the Study were held.

Six incident days were identified including 9 June 2019, 12 June 2019, 1
July 2019, 21 July 2019 (Yuen Long Incident), 11 August 2019 (Kwai Fong
Station and Tai Koo Station Incident) and 31 August 2019 (Prince Edward
Station Incident) (Chapters 7 to 12) because of the number of complaints
clustered around and the public concern expressed on them. In addition,
the Study also included two other topics of public interest including Police
identification during POEs (Chapter 13), as well as detention arrangement
at San Uk Ling Holding Centre (Chapter 14).
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Further to fact-finding, the IPCC also examined the existing applicable
laws and manuals of the Force as well as relevant international standards
and practices. In relation to the issue of police identification, the IPCC
commissioned researchers of Keele University in the United Kingdom
to produce a research report on international practices regarding the
issue. The primary objective of the research is to benchmark the current
police identification practice against existing standards in countries with
legislative and policing structures similar to those in Hong Kong. The IPCC
also commissioned independent academics from the University College
London and the Centre for Communication and Public Opinion Survey of
The Chinese University of Hong Kong to conduct surveys on police officers’
and public’s perceptions on themselves and towards each other (Chapter
15). These studies provide the broad picture of the POEs and perspective
to the situation for the IPCC’s effective performance of its statutory duties
under section 8 of the IPCCO.

BRTHRERFER  BEETIHEABTEPXKE
W) SEARESERLNBISE > ETHEWER

" RARBALHTRERESEAERAREHPTHN
Apart from collectmg |nformat|on from various sources,

academics from the Centre for Communication and
Public Opinion Survey of The Chinese University of
| Hong Kong to conduct a study on public perception of
protesters and the Police’s actions during the POEs.

In view of the extraordinary scale and unprecedented nature of the Study,
the IPCC engaged an International Expert Panel (IEP) with members
comprising former police management personnel and police oversight
bodies, as well as academics who had involved in large-scale research on
public policing matters. In the initial stage of the Study, IEP exchanged
their views with the Council on the approach and methodology in data
collection and analysis, as well as their overseas experiences in police
oversight during POEs.

While the IPCC proceeding with the Thematic Study at full speed, a citizen
filed an application for judicial review at the end of 2019 with respect to
the Council’s authority to conduct the Study. Judgement handed down
by the High Court in April 2020 affirmed that the conduct of the IPCC’s
Thematic Study was within the remit of the IPCCO.
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Council Chairman Dr Anthony Neoh (third from the right), accompanied
by TFSG Members — Vice Chairman the Hon Tony Tse Wai-chuen, Mr
Clement Chan Kam-wing (second & first from the left), Mr Herman Hui
Chung-shing, and Mr Douglas Lam Tak-yip, SC (second & first from the
right) — submitted the Thematic Study Report to the Chief Executive (third

BREGNERMBEELAYE (ED) REIWER (178)) MEBRLE (£
- ERBREFREIEREEERERIBER T (62 ) RKER
BER (REERER ) GRRLEE (H—)-

Mr Richard Yu (Secretary-General) (second from the left) and Mr Daniel
Mui (Deputy Secretary-General, Operations) (first from the left) delivered
the Thematic Study Report to Ms Lau Chi-wai, Edwina (the then Director
of Management Services of the Police Force) (second from the right)
and Mr Kan Kai-yan, Andrew (the then Assistant Commissioner of Police

from the left).
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[Service Quality Wing]) (first from the right).

On 15 May 2020, the IPCC submitted the Thematic Study Report to the
Chief Executive pursuant to section 30 of the IPCCO and released the
Report to the public on the same day. The 16-chapter Report is a full,
forward looking report with an aim to capture lessons learnt by the
Police Force for operational improvements in the future. A total of 52
recommendations were made by the IPCC with an objective to assist the
Commissioner in his review of tactics and strategy. The improvement
recommendations were mainly focussed on how public order policing
might be improved within the following themes: (a) assessment of risks;
(b) reviewing guidelines for use of force and training of officers; (c)
need for better technological capacity; (d) need for timely and effective
communications; (e) co-ordination with media; (f) systems fit for purpose;
(g) legal advisers office; and (h) maintaining public trust.

RAEMBFENEZAEEZEENBURMEREIFTERFEER
g AARMAEFEEBRITENRMER °

Dr Anthony Francis Neoh (Chairman), Members of the TFSG and Secretary-
General hosted numerous media briefings to update the public on the
progress of the Thematic Study undertaken by the Council.
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The Report attracted wide interest and media coverage with more than 50
local and worldwide media organisations attended the press conference.
During the development and after the publication of the Report, Council
Chairman and Members of the TFSG attended 25 media interviews to
elucidate the Report and the work/process involved in conducting the
Study. As of August 2020, about 130,000 downloads were recorded for
the online version of the Report available on the IPCC website.

BREBRE xﬁiﬁiﬁ&g}ﬁiHE%%E MEEFEHESS
Following the publication of the Thematic Study Report, Dr Anthony Neoh (Chairman) and Members of the TFSG took a number of feature interviews to
elucidate the observations and improvement recommendations made on police actions in the Report.
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The Chief Executive accepted all the recommendations in the Report. She
further commented that the Report was “comprehensive, objective, fact-
based and weighty”. A task force steered by Secretary for Security has
been formed to follow up on the 52 recommendations and report progress
to the Chief Executive.

The IPCC will closely monitor the implementation of the recommendations
by the Police through the prevailing platforms / mechanisms such as the
Operations Advisory Committee and regular Joint Meetings with the Police.
In parallel, the IPCC will continue the monitoring of Police’s handling of
individual complaints in a fair, impartial and evidence-based manner.
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In light of the changing social situation in Hong Kong, the IPCC has been
proactively reviewing and reflecting on its role and duties, and the tripartite
relationship between the IPCC, the Police and the public. The IPCC believes
that the enhancement of mutual trust and communication among the three
parties are of paramount importance to the reinforcement of a fair and just
police complaints system. As such, the IPCC takes the initiative to engage
with various stakeholders through an array of channels in order to better
discharge its function of promoting public awareness of the IPCC’s role
under section 8(1)(e) of the IPCC Ordinance.

At the same time, the IPCC also continues to maintain liaison with
stakeholders through prevailing communication channels including
corporate publications, IPCC website and its official YouTube Channel for
information dissemination in order to enhance public understanding of the
Council’'s work and the two-tier police complaints system.

2019F 4B E 2020538
22] April 2019 to March 2020

To enhance the youth’s understanding of the IPCC, the Council has been
promoting its School Programme since November 2016 to introduce
functions and role of the IPCC to teachers and students from local tertiary
institutions as well as secondary and primary schools.

During the reporting period, the IPCC paid visits to a number of secondary
schools. Principles and procedures for vetting complaint investigation
reports were explained to teachers and students at liberal studies lessons
and school assemblies, with the aid of videos, interactive games and case
sharing. The IPCC conducted seven visits during the year, reaching out to
nearly 1,000 teachers and students.
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Though school visits in this year were reduced due to social unrest and
COVID-19 situation, participants were keen to learn more about the
work of the IPCC, in particular nature of complaints, evidence analysis,
classification of investigation results and the Observers Scheme. The IPCC
representatives also guided students to examine real complaint cases with
the aim of fostering their independent, critical and analytical thinking skills.
The School Programme was well received by participating teachers and
students.

W SoH i b
201948

2018 -

AEEMERARERETEREXTESEREREEZXHE

(B) RRRDhBEEZEEE (PhE) NEBESR -

Mr Richard Yu (Secretary-General) was invited to officiate at the 50th Anniversary and Graduation Ceremony of Wai Kiu College (left) and the Graduation Ceremony of

De La Salle Secondary School New Territories (centre and right).

ELHEEERENE > BESFEANT
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Through the School Programme, it is hoped that the younger generation will
gain better understanding of the IPCC’s core values, that is, independence,
impartiality and integrity, as well as the rights and responsibilities for filing
complaint.
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The main statutory functions of the IPCC are to monitor the Police’s
handling of Reportable Complaints against police officers, identify
any deficiencies which might lead to complaints and thus, make
recommendations for improvement to the Force. It is therefore essential for
the Council to maintain communication with representatives from different
departments and levels of the Force to gain a better understanding of
various situations encountered by frontline officers as well as Police’s plans
in enhancing service quality.

The engagement activities between the IPCC and the Police during the year
are listed as follows:

2019.04.04

REATFEERNBEZEMMWERARRRILAEEL
BIEROBERE - BRAAFNRGKSENRE > I
77 RERENREN AR ERREARBER -

Dr Anthony Francis Neoh (Chairman), nine Members
and representatives from the Secretariat visited the
newly enhanced detention facilities and related
resources deployment at North Point Police Station; and
discussed with the Force representatives on how these
newly implemented measures could assist the Force in
improving their service quality.

2019.06.25

REMEFLENBREEHEES LNt —EITHH
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ABREREE > TRESNEHITE -

Dr Anthony Francis Neoh (Chairman) and eight
Members attended the 1 July procession briefing held
by the Police, during which the Force representatives
introduced arrangements for the procession route and
crowd management measures to be taken during the
procession. Members also met with several frontline
officers who had dealt with public order events (POEs)
to gain a better understanding of police actions.
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Dr Anthony Francis Neoh (Chairman), joined by 11
Members as well as Mr Richard Yu (Secretary- General),
conducted on-site observation of 1 July procession.
The IPCC delegation, accompanied by Ms Lau Chi-wai,
Edwina, the then Director of Management Services
of Hong Kong Police Force, Mr Chung Sze-pong,
the then Assistant Commissioner of Police (Service
Quality), and representatives from CAPO, observed
various “pressure points” along the procession route,
including the starting point at Victoria Park, Hing Fat
Street, Central Library and adjacent areas, Causeway
Road, Leighton Road, and the footbridge on O’Brien
Road, then walked along with the participants of the
procession from Hennessy Road towards Admiralty,
finally stopped by the Police Headquarters on Arsenal
Street.
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The IPCC held four joint meetings with CAPO in 2019/20. Part of the
meetings were open to the public and the media to enhance transparency
and understanding of IPCC’s work. Complaint matters that had raised
public concern and key issues related to the enhancement of the Force’s
service quality were discussed in the open session of the meetings.

2019.06.18

EHER T RMAKRHRTEE > LENTEARERE  The Police reported on the latest complaints statistics and

B TFAELE o

2019.09.17

gave a presentation on the work and operation of Major
Incidents Bureau.

EHER T RMAKRHREE > LEERTEHFAERN  The Police reported on the latest complaints statistics, and
DIEEWERT - WREABATRESERMAES T-EE1  presented the provision of psychological services to police

BRARNE o
2019.12.17

officers as well as doxxing and fake news relating to POEs.

B BEHRNEERAZCRAM R TREERE - WA The Force gave a presentation on media liaison in riot or

ETEGEBPHAIE BB HHISMLHF o

2020.03.17

EHERT RABRSFARE IR 0 MR

BHENARER
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chaotic situations and provided an update on the latest
arrangement of Police identification during protests.

TRERFE  The Force reported on the latest complaints statistics and

gave a presentation on escalation of violence at the POEs.
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IPCC meticulously examines every complaint case
to ensure fairness to both Complainants and
Police Officers involved
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In the current year, the IPCC held eight media events, including press
conference and media luncheon. During these occasions, in addition to
updating the press and the public on progress of Thematic Study and
Council’s work, Dr Anthony Francis Neoh (Chairman) also shared his first-
year working experience in the IPCC and his views on the Council’s future
development.

Fis
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IPCC Report 2018/19
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The Council

The IPCC is an independent statutory body established under the IPCCO.
The Chairman, three Vice-Chairmen and Members are all appointed by the
Chief Executive. The membership of the IPCC during this reporting period is

ELEEERE (REgK6) MBI
EERE > ETFE - ZURIEENEZEEE
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ZF & Chairman

as follows:

{£HA Appointment

REMEL > QC>SC» JP
Dr Anthony Francis NEOH, QC, SC, JP

Bl E Vice-Chairmen

20185 6B 1H#E
Since 1 June 2018

REEEZS > SBS JP
Hon Chris CHEUNG Wah-fung, SBS, JP

HiEHRZES ) BBS P
Hon Tony TSE Wai-chuen, BBS, JP

»EPREE 0 SBS JP
Hon Frankie YICK Chi-ming, SBS, JP

Z 5 Members

Bzt > BBS» MH s JP
Miss Lisa LAU Man-man, BBS, MH, JP

FFRERSLE » SBS MH 2 JP
Mr Herman HUI Chung-shing, SBS, MH, JP

faT 260 > BBS > JP
Ir Edgar KWAN Chi-ping, BBS, JP

PRERER 4 > MH > JP

Mr Clement CHAN Kam-wing, MH, JP
EREERAEM

Mr Douglas LAM Tak-yip, SC

EREREE L » BBS» MH > OSt) » JP
Dr Eric CHENG Kam-chung, BBS, MH,
0St), JP

BELZLZL  MH P
Ms Ann SO Lai-chun, MH, JP
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BREZ/NEEFE
Case Vetting Sub-group Chairman

BERHEREZESERE
BREZ/NEEFE

Serious Complaints Committee Chairman
Case Vetting Sub-group Chairman

BEEZNEEE
Case Vetting Sub-group Chairman

EERERBELZEGERE
(E2019%12R8)

Publicity and Survey Committee Chairman
(Till December 2019)

BIERERFEAZEGER
Operations Advisory Committee Chairman

EEZEETR
Management Committee Chairman

ERERERATZEGIFE 2020F18iE)
Publicity and Survey Committee Chairman
(Since January 2020)

FEREBZEGIR

Legal Committee Chairman

BEEZ/NEERE
Case Vetting Sub-group Chairman

{£8HA Appointment

2015418 1H#E
Since 1 January 2015

201518 1Hi#E
Since 1 January 2015

201918 18#E
Since 1 January 2019

{EHA Appointment

2014 1A 1HE 20194128 31H
From 1 January 2014 to 31 December 2019

201518 1Hi#E
Since 1 January 2015

201518 1Hi#E
Since 1 January 2015

2016F 6B 1HE
Since 1 June 2016

20171818
Since 1 January 2017

2015 1A 1HE

Since 1 January 2015

2014 1B 1BE2019%12831H
From 1 January 2014 to 31 December 2019
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Z 8 Members {EHA Appointment

fAIERER T4
Mr Richard HO Kam-wing

Mr Barry CHIN Chi-yung

Ly PN A
Mr José-Antonio MAURELLET, SC

B £2 5t 4
Mr Wilson KWONG Wing-tsuen

BB L T
Ms Ann AU Chor-kwan

RIKIBAE
Mr Alex CHU Wing-yiu

FEEL L
Miss Sylvia LEE Hiu-wah

ZR{CEE > BBS> MH» JP
Dr David LEE Ka-yan, BBS, MH, JP

EHELZ LT ) BBS MH JP
Ms Melissa Kaye PANG, BBS, MH, JP

RkEzt
Ms Shalini Shivan SUJANANI

HEEHE
Prof Martin WONG Chi-sang

mEBKE 0P
Mr Johnny YU Wah-yung, JP

PREREYSTEL > SBS» MH > JP

Dr Anissa CHAN WONG Lai-kuen, SBS,

MH, JP
FREGBRE
Mr Roland WONG Ka-yeung

FXHEE > MH > JP
Mr LEE Man-bun, MH, JP

BILERZL )P

Ms Jane Curzon LO, JP
MEBIE R AEE > P

Mr Paul LAM Ting-kwok, SC, JP
REEN¥LZL » SBS

Mrs Helen YU LAl Ching-ping, SBS

201541 A1 Hite
Since 1 January 2015

2016F 1A 1HE
Since 1 January 2016

2016 1H1HE2019%12H31H
From 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2019

20165 6B 1HiE
Since 1 June 2016

201751 B 1HE
Since 1 January 2017

20175 1B 1Bt
Since 1 January 2017

20175 1B 1 i
Since 1 January 2017

20178181 HE
Since 1 January 2017

20171 A1 B
Since 1 January 2017

20171 A1 B
Since 1 January 2017

20171 B 1B
Since 1 January 2017

2017 1B 1Bt
Since 1 January 2017

20185 6B 1HiE
Since 1 June 2018

2018F 6B 1HitE
Since 1 June 2018

2019518 1HEE
Since 1 January 2019

201951818
Since 1 January 2019

201998 4B
Since 4 September 2019

201998 4B
Since 4 September 2019
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%@%éﬁiﬁ?ﬁ* & HERZEES  ThelPCCholds in-house meetings every quarter, for the full Council to discuss
EE 8K

REZENABIE -WAERE > FEE  internal matters. Special in-house meeting would be held when necessary.
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@ Hi/F Attended O & Did not attend  N/A RE &M & Not a Member of the Meeting

8H16H *
16 Aug *

F&E Chairman
2EFMEL > QC»SC» JP

Dr Anthony Francis NEOH, QC, SC, JP o o ® o
BIEE Vice-Chairmen

Ig-IEo:;E:mCi;iECH’ELSJE:\ISG’V\J/Zh-fung, SBS, JP ¢ O o O
DI?J?EH%%SE \?vzis-c’hjfen, BBS, JP ¢ ® ® ®
?OI;‘ E}?ﬁi \,(IiiSC;]iJ-I;ing, SBS, JP o O ® o
£ 8 Members

iﬂ?ﬁi JEFAU E/Eim’!: ,BJI:S, MH, JP o o ® ®
;/\rjzlgrriﬁafHUSIiiun’:imjnPg SBS, MH, JP o o ® ®
ﬁiﬁ;iﬁiﬁ ’Ct?i-B;rigJ,PBBS, P o O O O
ﬁﬁiﬁi C’H’\:: ,KilFr)n-wing, MH, Jp ® O ® ®
?/Triij;s i(AﬁETﬂ;k—yip, SC O o O ®
igrf?f TcifEN;aiz;ic!\r?En’g,oBSBUSj I{/\PH, 05, JP ¢ ¢ ® o
;\E/\iﬁi%ci)r L,ai’Y:;}:w’nJ,PMH, P o O O ®
faIfRER L E ° ° ° °

Mr Richard HO Kam-wing

* 45 RIRFE G % Special in-house meeting
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nA7A* 11;:95* 12A38 18168 * 2B188 * 3838 38268 * ﬁfﬁl
7 Nov * 13 Nov * 3 Dec 16 Jan * 18 Feb * 3 Mar 26 Mar *
([ [ [ [ [ [ [ 1/1
[ [ O O o O o 6/1
o L L L L [ [ 1/1
L L L L L [ [ 10/1
([ O [ N/A N/A N/A N/A 6/7
L L L L L [ [ 1/1
O L L L L [ O 6/1
O [ [ [ [ [ [ ] 9/
O O O O O O O 2/1
L O L O L [ O 8/1
O O ([ N/A N/A N/A N/A 3/7
L O O [ O [ O 7/
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@ HFE Attended O HR7E Did not attend  N/A F2& &M & Nota Member of the Meeting

ﬁl\frﬁgfriﬁilm Chi-yung O o ® [
ﬁiﬁﬁ EﬂAU RELLET, SC © O O °
JI;E;{‘ri}\jvfl%:cl)EnEKWONG Wing-tsuen © o ® o
%ﬁﬁiﬁcmr— kwan ® o o L
ﬁ:ﬁfjﬁu Wing-yiu ® ® o L
iiﬁjiififLEE Hiu-wah ® o ° °
iiﬁi;%i’g;;,ﬁggs’, J!\s\)H, P o ® | O
f/\/j ?vﬁfsf K’a\I/SeB iANAQH B’BJSP, MH, JP © o | °
f/\?ﬁsiﬁ?:shivan SUJANAN| ® ® ] O
i?ﬁ? l\fﬁf WONG Chi-sang o o ° °
*I\j\%ri;fnﬁl:ﬁd \J/\ljah-yung, JP ® o ® [
ﬁfﬁﬁ%—ﬁl\] VSVBOSN,GT;-’kaZn, SBS, MH, JP o O ® ®
ﬁifaiﬁdi WONG Ka-yeung o o ® o
ir%éfﬁibwlmﬁ )P ® O o °
ﬁj ﬁiﬁz’ofm, )P O O O O
I;\Frﬁplﬁmfv\jﬁggmkwéi s, Jp N/A N/A N/A N/A
REBEHLZT > SBS - - " "

Mrs Helen YU LAI Ching-ping, SBS

* 45 RIRFE G % Special in-house meeting
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2019

ng7a* ngBE* 18168 * 28188 * 35268 * ﬁfﬁl
7 Nov * 13 Nov * 16 Jan * 18 Feb * 26 Mar *
L L L L L L [ 10/1
O O [ N/A N/A N/A N/A 2/7
L O L O O L L 7/1
L L L o L L [ 1/1
O L L L O L o 9/
L O L O L L O 8/1n
L O L O L L O 7/1
O L O L O O [ 6/1
O O L L O O L 6/1
o L O o L L O 9/1
O O L L L O [ 8/1n
L L L L L O O 8/1n
L L L L L L [ /M
L O L O O O [ 6/1
O L O O O O L 2/
O O L O L L O 3/7
L L L O L L [ 6/7
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MR rERRF e F iR
IPCC Members’ attendance at joint IPCC/CAPO meetings

BFHR: 2019F 4B E2020% 38
Period: April 2019 to March 2020

® HE Attended O #fE Did not attend N/A &2 g% & Not a Member of the Meeting

2019
gy
6A18H 9A 178 128178 Total
18 Jun 17 Sep 17 Dec
F & Chairman
2EMEL > QC>SCr P
Dr Anthony Francis NEOH, QC, SC, JP o o ® o 4/4
BIEE Vice-Chairmen
REWZES » SBS» JP
Hon Chris CHEUNG Wah-fung, SBS, JP - ¢ o o 4/4
H{ERZES o BBS P
Hon Tony TSE Wai-chuen, BBS, JP o o o o 4/4
EPEzRE > SBS» JP
Hon Frankie YICK Chi-ming, SBS, JP o o ® o 4/4
ZB8 Members
2z %+ > BBS MH > JP
Miss Lisa LAU Man-man, BBS, MH, JP o o o N 3/3
FFRERSEE > SBS MH » JP
Mr Herman HUI Chung-shing, [ ) [ [ [ 4/4
SBS, MH, JP
BRI TF2ET » BBS > JP
Ir Edgar KWAN Chi-ping, BBS, JP ¢ ¢ ® O 3/4
BRI AL o MH o JP
Mr Clement CHAN Kam-wing, MH, JP O o O o 2/4
Bl B R KARET
Mr Douglas LAM Tak-yip, SC o O O O i
ERSasE B+ > BBS > MH » OS] » JP
Dr Eric CHENG Kam-chung, [ ] ([ o o 4/4
BBS, MH, OSt, JP
BEX XL > MH > JP
Ms Ann SO Lai-chun, MH, JP o O O N/A 173
BEE e
Mr Richard HO Kam-wing © o © O 174
REBLE
Mr Barry CHIN Chi-yung ¢ o o o 4/4
FURE R AR
Mr José-Antonio MAURELLET, SC O o O N/A 13
FKEE T ° ° ° ° 4/4

Mr Wilson KWONG Wing-tsuen
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ERHLt

Ms Ann AU Chor-kwan
FoKBRE

Mr Alex CHU Wing-yiu
FEERT

Miss Sylvia LEE Hiu-wah
FR{ZELE > BBSs MH JP

Dr David LEE Ka-yan, BBS, MH, JP
FEafEL L+ » BBS> MH P

Ms Melissa Kaye PANG, BBS, MH, JP

RkZEg+

Ms Shalini Shivan SUJANANI
HEELEHE

Prof Martin WONG Chi-sang
WEBRE 5P

Mr Johnny YU Wah-yung, JP
BR=REEELT » SBS» MH» JP
Dr Anissa CHAN WONG Lai-kuen,
SBS, MH, JP

FRGBEE

Mr Roland WONG Ka-yeung
EORITE  MH o JP

Mr LEE Man-bun, MH, JP
BAEXL P

Ms Jane Curzon LO, JP

MEBIE FAERN > JP

Mr Paul LAM Ting-kwok, SC, JP
REE¥LZL 5 SBS

Mrs Helen YU LAI Ching-ping, SBS

@ HF Attended

6H18H
18 Jun

N/A

N/A

O #tFE Did not attend

%7°Z Chapter6
#R#ZeE  Organisational structure

N/A T2 & B 8 Not a Member of the Meeting

2019

98178 128178 1%3{?[

17 Sep 17 Dec
L o [ 4/4
L o [ 4/4
L o O 3/4
[ O O 1/4
[ O [ 2/4
[ O O 2/4
[ o L 4/4
O O [ 2/4
O o [ 3/4
[ [ L 4/4
L o O 3/4
O O [ 2/4
L o [ 3/3
[ [ [ 3/3
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5E5Z8Y
Committees

ELEgZE0ANMENE > BRRHER
AIERHAERSE - MENEEED RS
BIEFERERZS - HREEES  BSH
ZBUKZEBRERL - 1L &
LERARIFRERLT AEESERE
g UEEREMMBEITRIAE ©

I REEZECNBELRNRERE
mTr

1 BERMEREST

Members of the IPCC are divided into four groups to examine the
investigation reports submitted by CAPO. Chairmen for the four groups are
Vice-Chairmen Hon Chris CHEUNG Wah-fung, Hon Tony TSE Wai-chuen, Hon
Frankie YICK Chi-ming and Member Dr Eric CHENG Kam-chung. The IPCC
has set up five Committees to help perform its functions more efficiently.

The terms of reference and members of the five Committees are as follows:

Serious Complaints Committee

s E
a ERR AURERZZACEE
MREMEZ;

b. (R ZEMI € B R B B & A (B F Y45 5
2

CHARERESIINENEXT R
IR% > M ERBRERFEE

d. BZEERMERVAEER > LW
ITFERHER

e RHZEERAEETRERBER
HEREENENEER  HELE
ERE o

& Membership

ESE
HE§2ES > BBS P
%58
SREEFZS > SBS P
ZERZEE » SBS 0 JP

23X 3x% =+ > BBS» MH » JP
(E2019€F128)

BELZLT > MH» P
(E2019F128)

BUSBRESRERHFESS | 2019/20 TIERE

Terms of reference
a. To determine the criteria of serious cases that should come under
the monitoring of the Committee;

b. To examine and determine special procedures for monitoring serious
complaints;

c. To examine the need to seek outside professional advice or service
to facilitate the scrutiny of complaint cases;

d. To examine the findings of serious complaint cases after investigation
has been completed, and put forward recommendations to the
Chairman;

e. To put forward any issues in relation to the monitoring of serious
complaint cases for the IPCC’s deliberation, as the Committee
deems appropriate.

Chairman

Hon Tony TSE Wai-chuen, BBS, JP
Members

Hon Chris CHEUNG Wah-fung, SBS, JP
Hon Frankie YICK Chi-ming, SBS, JP

Miss Lisa LAU Man-man, BBS, MH, JP
(Till Dec 2019)

Ms Ann SO Lai-chun, MH, JP
(Till Dec 2019)



ERER$EE L » BBS» MH » OSt) > JP
HFoRES S 5 SBS MH 0 P
PREFESSEAE > MH > JP

=
%
'H%lf “?
&
H H

o 4ot

{ZB4 > BBS» MH > JP

H X

I.H:
3
R

A

PREREEEL > SBS» MH» JP

SB7NE  Chapter6
4AMZ2#%  Organisational structure

Dr Eric CHENG Kam-chung, BBS, MH, OStJ, JP
Mr Herman HUI Chung-shing, SBS, MH, JP

Mr Clement CHAN Kam-wing, MH, JP

Ms Ann AU Chor-kwan

Miss Sylvia LEE Hiu-wah

Dr David LEE Ka-yan, BBS, MH, JP

Prof Martin WONG Chi-sang

Dr Anissa CHAN WONG Lai-kuen, SBS, MH, JP
Mr Roland WONG Ka-yeung

Mr LEE Man-bun, MH, JP
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ERRERRELZEY

Publicity and Survey Committee

s E

a. ERTTRALLGHKMBHRIE
RHELHHIEN

b. EHMHMECEATRENE BRAAM
EB > BIF
- SANKNNENRE > FIMER
BE R TIREEER ;
- RESWEH ;
- HENBRAN BB RAME ;

c. BRI ERRERARENER A
BEIF > URRENZEARETGE
ERBBIE,

d.B5 % (b) 7 (c) 1R PR & 51 B B9 i E AN
CE

e BRFEEFFBIMFABREE
RO HEZEEZE

fRHZEERAEETHEEHRHN
ERFEE > HELEEERE -

X & Membership
B3

B X%+ » BBS: MH » JP
(E2019%128 )

PRERESSTE > MH > JP
(2020F 1H#E)

%8

BEYZLT > MH» P
(E2019F128)

Bp k25 E
BEHL L
RKBIRE
RERSLE 0P

KREFERE > SBS
(2019 98 }E)

BUSBRESRERHFEES | 2019/20 TERE

Terms of reference
a. To consider measures that could enhance the image and public
understanding of the IPCC;

b. To consider and approve publicity-related activities which have been
budgeted for, including:

— Content and design of publicity materials, such as annual reports,
website, videos, publications and other promotional materials;

— Launching of publicity activities;
— Selection and commissioning of contractors to assist in such projects;

c. To consider and approve the launching of surveys that have been
budgeted for, and the selection and commissioning of contractors to
assist in such projects;

d. To monitor the progress and quality of the projects in (b) and (c);

e. To consider and advise on an annual publicity plan for the IPCC’s
consideration;

f. To put forward any publicity-related issues for the IPCC’s deliberation
as the Committee deems appropriate.

Chairman

Miss Lisa LAU Man-man, BBS, MH, JP
(Till Dec 2019)

Mr Clement CHAN Kam-wing, MH , JP
(Since Jan 2020)

Members

Ms Ann SO Lai-chun, MH, JP
(Till Dec 2019)

Mr Wilson KWONG Wing-tsuen
Ms Ann AU Chor-kwan

Mr Alex CHU Wing-yiu

Mr Johnny YU Wah-yung, JP

Mrs Helen YU LAI Ching-ping, SBS
(Since Sep 2019)



ERZEE

Management Committee

%7°Z Chapter6
#R#ZeE  Organisational structure

ek M [E]

- BERENEMNE ;

- PENERRERELEET B
MEEE SRSERNEENS
£ FRRELEER ;

- HEZEERFAMPZENTIZNTR
£EH;

- fAstEEBE TN LR ERE
BHENEIMAHN > EREREE
BRERAEZETEHRANEH
BEE

c.RHZBER

FEETHKAE
BER #HEE

EEN
gERE °

& Membership

B3

RiJa T LA26M > BBS 2 JP

%5

HfE$2EEF 0 BBS P
ZpiRsEIEL > BBS» MH» OSt) > JP
fAIsRER T E

EiZHe L
(2019 9H#E)

FREYLT

ZEafEx+ > BBS» MH JP
ERBRE

FXORE > MH > JP

Terms of reference

a. To oversee major areas of work of the Secretariat;
b. To consider and approve:
— any changes to the annual budget;

— appointment, interdiction from duty, and termination of employment
of employees at Assistant Secretary-General and Senior Vetting
Officer/Senior Research Officer/Senior Manager ranks;

— key administrative matters that affect the service of IPCC;

— proposed new contracts with estimated value above $250,000
or covering a new area of activity, with the exception of those
contracts or activities which come under the purview of the
Publicity and Survey Committee;

c. To put forward any administrative and management issues for the
IPCC’s deliberation as the Committee deems appropriate.

Chairman

Ir Edgar KWAN Chi-ping, BBS, JP

Members

Hon Tony TSE Wai-chuen, BBS, JP

Dr Eric CHENG Kam-chung, BBS, MH, OSt}, JP
Mr Richard HO Kam-wing

Mr Wilson KWONG Wing-tsuen

Ms Ann AU Chor-kwan
(Since Sep 2019)

Miss Sylvia LEE Hiu-wah

Ms Melissa Kaye PANG, BBS, MH, JP
Mr Roland WONG Ka-yeung

Mr LEE Man-bun, MH, JP
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EBFREFEHNEEY

Operations Advisory Committee

HEsEE Terms of reference
aMAEREKBEZAERKRS - AF  a. To advise the Secretariat on general issues and matters of significant

GRAERR R RIER W BRI E
£ Uk S EBRNVRESIEM
EEN—REERERZFTENMELR
RMUER > UREBEEBRTEHE
& MELEEE

BRRFRERRBARBFELEERS

Z URRAEEGRERIIFRE
HEHEE

RHMERER  BRIREE 0 SR

ENEBRAEFREER » LEE
ERERERFHES  WEHIRA
BRFEEIERE (BEREES
SRR AR P BB EIRE) » LUE
— P RAGLEEERELEFHYER
KRR 5 ARk A I M E R R
HELGERELTM  EHEFM -
Y BRERF - ARFkTFEE
BRI RIS I FREB X BVEE

importance arising from the scrutiny and examination of Reportable
Complaints (RC), Notifiable Complaints (NC) categorisation and cases
resolved by Expression of Dissatisfaction Mechanism (EDM) as well as
monitoring actions on post endorsement issues, and, where it deems
appropriate, make recommendations for the IPCC’s consideration;

b. To co-ordinate Working Level Meetings (WLM) with CAPO and

nominate IPCC Members to chair the WLM;

. Upon review, observations or report of the Secretariat, to advise

on the existing police complaint process and, where appropriate
and necessary, make recommendations to streamline the existing
workflows for complaint handling, from the intake to disposal
of complaints, with a view to further improving the efficiency
and effectiveness of the IPCC case examination process; and
to this end it will be consulted by the Secretariat on the review
of the IPCC Case Examination Manual, police manuals, orders,
standing procedures, instructions or guidelines which are related
to complaints or complaints handling; and, where it deems

THBERR TFLER  #HELS
ZE;

d.MMERS REES T EFRRM
RetBAMERRHER > LHEEE
BR T EEE  HELEER -

appropriate, make recommendations for the IPCC’s consideration;

d.To advise the Secretariat on research projects and studies to
be undertaken by the Secretariat in relation to the work of IPCC,
and, where it deems appropriate, make recommendations for the
IPCC's consideration.

& Membership

EE Chairman

HFRERALAE 2 SBS MH 2 P Mr Herman HUI Chung-shing, SBS, MH, JP
%8 Members

Bl X%+ » BBS» MH 2 JP Miss Lisa LAU Man-man, BBS, MH, JP
(Z2019€F128) (Till Dec 2019)

PREBESSTE > MH > JP Mr Clement CHAN Kam-wing, MH, JP
BBK 82504 Mr Wilson KWONG Wing-tsuen
BB et Ms Ann AU Chor-kwan

RAKIBIRE Mr Alex CHU Wing-yiu

BHEEHIR Prof Martin WONG Chi-sang
FRENLZT » SBS Mrs Helen YU LAI Ching-ping, SBS
(20199 HiE) (Since Sep 2019)
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Legal Committee

%7°Z Chapter6
#R#ZeE  Organisational structure

ek M [E]

FREGZEENEEEIMNERTEE
B ERUTEEREAFEXRER -

a. BERRIFERPIEENEEREE ;

b. ¥ (BREGRE) RELETARIRA
BSFRIBERRE

c. BEEENT(FFRETMHRNERIAZR

d. EEGNEFR/NEEMELNZ
REE ;

e EMHEELEENTERRIEMKMTE
BHEMARMEA o

FREBZEGNERWERBEIRT
LHEIE o

B & Membership

B

EEEBRKER

%8

FFRER Y4 1 SBS MH > JP

ELEERAREM
(E2019F128)

FBREYLLT

wEEEL L > BBS» MH > JP
EXEBRE

‘ABRL P

MIEBIERARE > P
(2019 9F#E)

Terms of reference

Legal Committee is to comment and express views on the following as
may be required by the Council or Secretariat from time to time.

a. Legal issues arising from the examination of complaint cases;

b. Interpretation of the IPCCO and IPCC’s internal rules and regulations;

c. Legal research arising from or incidental to the Council’s work;

d. Legal issues arising from the operation and/or administration of the
Council;

e. Any other legal issues related or incidental to the Council’s work.

Legal Committee may require the Secretariat to assist in carrying out
the above.

Chairman

Mr Douglas LAM Tak-yip, SC

Members

Mr Herman HUI Chung-shing, SBS, MH, JP

Mr José-Antonio MAURELLET, SC
(Till Dec 2019)

Miss Sylvia LEE Hiu-wah

Ms Melissa Kaye PANG, BBS, MH, JP
Mr Roland WONG Ka-yeung

Ms Jane Curzon LO, JP

Mr Paul LAM Ting-kwok, SC, JP
(Since Sep 2019)
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Bxa

Observers

ARSI ZT REEBREZMESR
BATHEREEEEHRE  BHELER
BRHERREENRAEAERKRFNS
N - REPRELEETERENZENT

Under the Observers Scheme, the Secretary for Security may appoint
persons deemed fit as IPCC Observers, to assist the Council in observing the
manner in which CAPO handles and investigates Reportable Complaints.
The following is a list of Observers in the current reporting period:

BRERE Name of Observers

1 EARR L

2 B fameRE - P
ERESE > BBS» MH > JP
5 PRE L L > MH

6 MEZERL > )P

7 MREREBEE > MH

8 PREZSREESE > BBS JP
9 PRIX&REE
10 BERELE

® 11 MREEXE

12 BREBEHUR > MH > JP
13 BEMLEE

14 BAMSEE > MH

15 BREREELE > MH > JP
16 EBEFESELE - MH

17 RIEZEKE
REEZYL )P

19  REBFLE > MH> P
20  RERBELRAE

® 2019F 48 1B%E®
Newly-appointed Observers (1 Apr 2019)

® 20195 11A1BHESR
Newly-appointed Observers (1 Nov 2019)

BUSBRESRERHFESS | 2019/20 TIERE

Ms Grace AU Wing-yan

Mr Rex AUYEUNG Pak-kuen, JP

Mr BOU Shing-ip

Mr Daniel CHAM Ka-hung, BBS, MH, JP
Ms CHAN Hang, MH

Ms Jenny CHAN Heung-lin, JP

Mr Calvin CHAN Ka-wai, MH

Dr Eugene CHAN Kin-keung, BBS, JP
Mr Haydn CHAN Mou-keung

Mr Tony CHAN Tung-ngok

Mr CHAN Wing-fung

Prof CHAN Yuk-kit, MH, JP

Mr Calvin CHAU

Mr Mathew CHENG Muk-lam, MH

Dr Baldwin CHENG Shing-fung, MH, JP
Mr Edwin CHENG Shing-lung, MH

Mr Charles CHEUNG Cheuk-yiu

Mrs Peggy CHEUNG Po-yee, |P

Mr Thomas CHEUNG Tsun-yung, MH, JP

Mr CHEUNG Yam-lung

® 2019F1MAB1RHENK

Retired Observer (1 Nov 2019)

® 2019%F -2020FFHE

Resigned Observer (2019-2020)
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Hz=gxE Name of Observers

21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36

3

<

38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50

51

RIKENE L Dr CHEUNG Yee-lai

R P Ms Mimi CHEUNG Yee-may, P
BRI/ E Mr Gordon CHIN Shing-hoi
EoKATSE Mr Wilkie CHOI Wing-kee
HEEZL Ms Christina CHONG Dong-ying
ReriE Rt > MH Ms Joanne CHONG Sze-pui, MH
FEimiEL > MH Dr CHOW Kam-wai, MH

[E 8BB4 » BBS » MH Mr Alan CHOW Yiu-ming, BBS, MH
BERL L Ms CHUNG Ching-may
BERELL Ms CHUNG Yin-ting

BB EE Mr Alex FAN Hoi-kit

B XfEFRE Mr James Mathew FONG

F &L > BBS ) JP Mr FONG Ping, BBS, JP
FEEET Dr Shirley FU

BSEBERE » MH Mr Clement FUNG Cheuk-nang, MH
AR T E Mr Alan HO Ka-ki

Rl IR & Mr HO Siu-kong

fRIRERR o4 Mr HO Ting-hong

Al FH T E Mr James HO Tsz-kong

R L Dr HO Wai-kuen

iR ERE Mr Alec HO Yat-wan

IR L+ Ms HO Yuen-han

LxEzt Ms HUNG Wing-ki

31: 37 Dr Tiffany IP Nga-min

EEB=RE Mr Hugh Alexander KAM Tsun-ting
EREA{_f&L > MH Dr Charles KOO Ming-yan, MH
MBEIBRE Mr KWOK Kam-hung

MARBALE » BBS» MH » P Mr Billy LAM Chek-yau, BBS, MH, JP
MEEELE » BBS MH > JP Dr Lawrence LAM Chi-kit, BBS, MH, JP
MEEEE Dr Otis LAM Cho-bun

MIRALE Mr LAM Chun-sing
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52 MEEKEE > MH Mr LAM Faat-kang, MH
53 MEBEE
54 MEFEE
55

Mr LAM Ho-yeung
Mr Laurie LAM Hoy-lee
WERRSE » MH Mr Matthew LAM Kin-hong, MH
® 56 ZEEHEKE Mr Terence LAU Chun-kai
57 BIEEZESLE > MH s JP Mr LAU Hing-wah, MH, JP
58  1EZERLE 0 MH P Mr LAU Ka-keung, MH, JP
59 ZINE&EE Mr Benjamin LAU Man-tung
60 BfRNEE Mr Billy LAU Wai-kwong
61  BIERLESE Mr Ellis LAU Ying-tung
62 FEHLL Ms LEE Fu-fan
63 EFHE%L4E Mr LEE Sai-kee
64  FHEFUL
65 F

FFEER L > MH JP

Ms Vivian LEE Ying-shih
Mrs Tennessy LEE HUI Mei-sheung, MH, JP
66 MR T Ms LEUNG Suk-chong
® ¢ FEMRL Ms LI Ka-yan
® 63 BEfHFfELt Ms LIAO Shu-hang
69  ERAE4E > MH Dr LIU Kai-ming, MH
70 BEREEL Dr LIU Kam-hing
71 BmEAKE Mr LO Fat-keung
72 BRERE Mr Vincent LO Kai-fu
73 EIREXRZE > MH P Mr Norman LO Kam-wah, MH, JP
74 BHAEL Dr LO Pui-yin
75 B{CR%KE o MH P Mr LO Yan-lai, MH, JP
76 BEiSZ 1 » BBS» MH > JP Ms LU Hai, BBS, MH, JP
77 BEREE Mr LUI Chi-ho
78  BE®NIEAE 0 MH Mr LUK King-kwong, MH
® 2019F 481 BMES

® 2019F11A1HENK
Newly-appointed Observers (1 Apr 2019) Retired Observer (1 Nov 2019)
® 209F 1B 1B#ES [
Newly-appointed Observers (1 Nov 2019)
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Hz=axE Name of Observers

® /9 EESELL Mrs Virginia MA LO Kam-wah
80  EEEYL L Ms Mabel MAK Lok-sheung
® 31 FHERLtL Ms Yanice MAK Wing-yan
82  EfhEESLR4E > BBS» MH: JP Mr Rex MOK Chung-fai, BBS, MH, JP
83  EHKEYED Rev MOK Yun-fai
84 {hiBLIKE Mr Aaron NG Hoi-shan
85 RERWYZL P Ms NG Ling-ling, JP
86 RRILK4E Mr Andy NG Wang-tsang
87 RXE#EE »BBS P Hon Jimmy NG Wing-ka, BBS, JP
® 38 HEEXL Mr Lucas NGAN Chun
® 39 mlfmk&E Mr NGAN Siu-lun
90 wHEESRE > MH Mr Victor PANG Wing-seng, MH
® 91 EXR#EEE Mr Gavin POON Ka-ming
92 EEELE Mr PUN Kwok-wah
® 93 IFERLL Mr Rex SHAM Pui-sum
94  FETFHRE > BBS P Mr Simon SIU Chak-yu, BBS, JP
95 FERRESLYE > BBS) MH» JP Mr SIU Chor-kee, BBS, MH, JP
9% EHRLZL Ms Crystal SO Hoi-yan
97 BEEBEYRL Ms Herdy SO Wai-yin
® 98 HEE KL Mr Eliott Hancock SUEN
99  HEXBRTE > MH Mr Kyran SZE, MH
® 100 BEEXRL Mr Wilson TAM Wai-shun
101 ®WMEREZE Mr TANG Chi-wang
® 102 EBRLE Mr Hugh TONG Chun-wai
103 EERZL Ms TONG Zi-yan
® 104 EFmYEL Ms Rebecca TSAI Ching-yu
105 REZZL Ms Sherry TSAI Hiu-wai
106 BEEYL Ms TSANG Ka-lai
107 BXREE Mr TSANG Man-biu
108 EXHEEE Mr TSANG Man-hing
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® 109 BEREYL Ms TSANG Tsz-lui
110 BRREE Mr Newman TSANG Yiu-man
1M1 #HEeEt Dr Patrick TSE Kwing-chuen

® 112 HE\ERELE > MH Dr Michael TSUI Fuk-sun, MH

® 113 FHEZTLt Ms Gigi WONG Ching-chi
M4 HBEREL )P Dr WONG Chung-leung, JP
115 FEHEZL Ms Jacqueline WONG

@ 116 EBEEEL Mr WONG Ting-hong
117 =EBE%E > MH Mr WONG Yiu-chung, MH
18 #REL )P Dr Kitty WU Kit-ying, JP
119 REgERE Mr Bernard WU Tak-lung
120 @EEEHE Prof Michael YAM Chi-ho
121 EAsak4E Mr YAN Mou-keung
122 HBEEEL Dr YEUNG Wai-hong
123 EiRmEES&E 0 BBS) MH» JP Mr Stephen YIP Chun-nam, BBS, MH, JP
124 SkEHLZ T Ms Christina YIU Po-nga
125 HRERE Mr Alan YOUNG Tim-tsan

® 126 REFZL Ms Avon YUE Nga-fong
127 REERE Mr YUEN Tat-tong

® 2019F 481 BMES ® 2019FE1 B 1HEHK
Newly-appointed Observers (1 Apr 2019) Retired Observer (1 Nov 2019)
® 2019F11A1BHEH ® 2019 2020 FHE
Newly-appointed Observers (1 Nov 2019) Resigned Observer (2019-2020)
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%7°Z Chapter6
#R#ZeE  Organisational structure

The IPCC is supported by a full-time Secretariat, headed by Secretary-
General, with a total of 68 posts on the establishment in 2019/20. The
major function of the Secretariat is to assist Council Members in examining
complaint investigation reports and in promoting the work of the IPCC.

The organisational chart of the IPCC Secretariat, as at 31 March 2020, is as
below:

WER

Secretary-General

AARE

Personal Secretary

EREER

Legal Adviser

BIHER (178)

Deputy Secretary-General
(Operations)

BRER (EH)

Deputy Secretary-General
(Management)

B E R

Assistant Secretary-

(1)
General (1)

BIEHMER (2)
Assistant Secretary-General (2)

R34 EihE1 B2 BRE3 BrE7 B4 BRONMBES  BRE6  BihESs
Research Vetting Vetting Vetting Vetting Vetting Vetting Vetting Vetting
Team Team 1 Team 2 Team 3 Team7 Team 4 Team 5 Team 6 Team 8
ANERR
ABR ARRED THE B
ERE . )
) Public Human Information
Finance & .
Relations Resources & Technology
Corporate L )
) Team Administration Team
Services Team
Team
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Wc PA

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO
INDEPENDENT POLICE COMPLAINTS COUNCIL

(RiF (BUERESREBRAFZE GG ML)

(Established under the Independent Police Complaints Council Ordinance)

ER

ABEm (UTEHE %) EFFT
HNRFENSEIEMBUERE T RE
RiFZEG (UTHER 588 )NHE
wE - BHMBRERAER_T-_TF=A
Z+—HNMBRAREBEZALEE
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ERZER

HAERBEERGHMAERHEN (FE
BEHER]) ETEE c RAERFENT
RENEEEELRE ZHUMMUE
MBRERAKENEET BOPFE—TB
o REEBEAMLGEMYN (FXE
sHEMEESFA) (UTEE Pl ) &
MBINES  LEBRTTRAFHNEME
XEREME - HMAMBRE > RAMESHE
SHREEEEREEMAKFANEFER
IREERE o

MBERERREZHENERS
BOMRER

EERHAMERES - AthERESET
HRIFRSEANENR > BEFEEMHER
RERBEMZHBERS o

HAHMBRERNEREFAREEME
Ao RATAHZSHMERNERETAT
AWEFER o

HE2020F3A3MHILEE
Year ended 31 March 2020

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of the Independent Police
Complaints Council (the “Council”) set out on pages 118 to 139, which
comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2020, and the
statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in reserves and
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Council as at 31 March 2020, and of its financial
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Council in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Information other than the financial statements and
auditor’s report thereon

The Council is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual report, but does not
include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility
is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Council and those charged with
governance for the financial statements

The Council is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements
that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA and for such internal control as the Council determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Council is responsible for
assessing the Council’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Council either intends to liquidate
the Council or to ceases operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Council’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with section 29 of Schedule 1 of the Independent Police Complaints
Council Ordinance (Cap.604), and for no other purposes. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:
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- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Council’s internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the Council.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the Council’s use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Council’s ability to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Council to cease to continue
as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

/an‘dz é\)e? A Ao

PATRICK WONG C.P.A. LIMITED

Certified Public Accountant

LAU YUK MING HAROLD

FCPA (Practising), MSCA

Certified Public Accountant (Practising),

Hong Kong Practising Certificate Number: PO5468

20 August 2020
Hong Kong
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EEHB=mR

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

BE_Z-_ESF=-A=+—HLEE
Year ended 31 March 2020

i3 2020 2019
Note $ $
YA Income
HF#EB) Government grants 6 106,230,945 81,355,666
HMUg A Otherincome 7 547,705 333,402
106,778,650 81,689,068
i Expenditure
BIM4 Staff costs 8 61,233,727 51,148,162
— R K TBER General and administrative expenses 8 39,605,855 22,954,777
AEgMEME Honorarium to Council members 19 870,200 859,640
M#ER Finance cost 8 491,658 -
102,201,440 74,962,579
FEERBREEIWNHMAE o
Surplus and total comprehensive income for the year 4,577,210 6,726,489

BINEEE19EZUBRRMAECB AP BRER C—BH
The notes on pages 122 to 139 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CEEE T
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

{ZEZFF=RA=1+—H
At 31 March 2020

[iF3 2020 2019
Note $ $
JEREEE Non-current asset
EEEE Fixed assets 10 35,976,369 8,903,704
REIEE Current assets
W& KRFEFRIE Deposits and prepayments 5,084,521 4,248,059
FEUWLFI S Interest receivable 13,562 3,222
REKRIFEZLEE/Y Cash and cash equivalents 1 37,979,364 25,405,973
43,077,447 29,657,254
TEI&fE Current liabilities
IRIEBFF#EB) Deferred government grants 12 609,583 771,945
HihfERIEREST &M Other payables and accruals 13 14,469,681 6,361,508
HEEME Lease liabilities 15 11,724,179
26,803,443 7,133,453
MENEERE Net current assets 16,274,004 22,523,801
EEBERTREAMR Total assets less current liabilities 52,250,373 31,427,505
JEiREN& & Non-current liabilities
IRIEEIFT#EB) Deferred government grants 12 - 609,583
ET#mMEE%E Provision for staff gratuities 14 6,878,784 6,241,933
HEE&E Lease liabilities 15 16,218,390
23,097,174 6,851,516
BEHR{E Net assets 29,153,199 24,575,989
{#f% Reserves
K5t &ER Accumulated surplus 16 29,153,199 24,575,989

FER_ETEN\AZTAMETREAGEIUBRE
Approved and authorised for issue by the Council on 20 August 2020. M./\\/L/« -

/
/
B10EEE 0B HERENEABANBREL B, REF > QCoSCo P EFE
The notes on pages 122 to 139 are an integral part of these financial statements. Anthony Francis NEOH, QC, SC, JP Chairman
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN RESERVES

BE_Z-_EF=-A=1+—HILEE
Year ended 31 March 2020

Rt R
M 5% Accumulated
surplus
Note S
R-E-N\EMNA—RBAZ&R
Balance at 1 April 2018 63,427,099
FARBKREEWTE
Surplus and total comprehensive income for the year 6,726,489
RETHNNBRE A 1
Excessive reserve refunded to the Hong Kong Government (45,577,599)
R-E-hF=A=+—HROA—HZ&ER
Balances at 31 March 2019 and at 1 April 2019 24,575,989
FENBRGBREERE
Surplus and total comprehensive income for the year 4,577,210
AZEEEZA=+—HZ&R
Balance at 31 March 2020 29,153,199

BINBEEF19EHMBERRMFEBAFBFRERZ—HM7.

The notes on pages 122 to 139 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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HERER
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BE_Z-_ESF=-A=1+—HLEE
Year ended 31 March 2020

=4 2020 2019
Note S S
&g %8 Operating activities
FARBKREEW T
Surplus and total comprehensive income for the year 4,577,210 6,726,489
B TIIEEEHFAZE Adjustments for:
- #r& Depreciation 11,595,644 4,564,437
- M &ERA Finance cost 491,658 -
- FIBUA Interest income (543,177) (332,364)
- REFHTNBER#E
Excessive reserve refunded to the Hong Kong Government - (45,577,599)
CEETEHAICEER/(HE)
Operating surplus/(deficit) before working capital changes 16,121,335 (34,619,037)
RERFEMREZ (180 )/ mb
(Increase)/decrease in deposits and prepayments (836,462) 60,352
IR IE AT 4 B 2 i
Decrease in deferred government grants (771,945) (2,156,666)
HittERIER B &R ZEM
Increase in other payables and accruals 8,108,173 3,449,786
BTARMEREZEM
Increase in provision for staff gratuities 636,851 1,302,719
SERHEENHRENRAA /(RE)
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities 23,257,952 (31,962,846)
125 &8 Investing activities
BBABEEE Purchase of fixed assets (4,166,494) (4,731,149)
BUFIE Interest received 532,837 335,035
RETEZREMAL R
Net cash used in investing activities (3,633,657) (4,396,114)
Bh ¥ ;%8 Financing activities
B1JE&A&E Capital element of lease rentals paid (6,559,246)
BFHEF 2 Interest element of lease rentals paid (491,658)
METBZRENML R
Net cash used in financing activities (7,050,904)
RERFEEEM2IEM /(LD ) BEE
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 12,573,391 (36,358,960)
FEMZRERREEED
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year 25,405,973 61,764,933
FRZAERREEEN -
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year 37,979,364 25,405,973

BINBEF9ECHMBERERMFEBAMFRERZ -7,

The notes on pages 122 to 139 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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1 General Information

The Independent Police Complaints Council (the “Council”) is a body
corporate established under the Independent Police Complaints Council
Ordinance (Cap. 604) (the “Ordinance”). Under the Ordinance, the Council
assumes its statutory role as the authority for observing, monitoring and
reviewing the handling and investigation of reportable complaints, and
making recommendations to the Commissioner of Police or the Chief
Executive or both of them in respect of the handling or investigation of
reportable complaints as specified in the Ordinance. The Council also
monitors actions taken or to be taken in respect of any member of the
police force by the Commissioner in connection with reportable complaints,
and to advise them of its opinion on such actions.

Since the Council is not profit-oriented and is not subject to any
externally imposed capital requirements, its primary financial and capital
management objectives are to maintain a balance between annual income
and expenditure, so that it has the ability to operate as a going concern
and perform its statutory roles and functions.

The Council is primarily financed by government subventions. Any
operating surplus shall be carried forward to the following financial year to
meet future expenditure required for the operations of the Council.

2 Statement of compliance with Hong Kong financial
reporting standards

The Council’s financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”),
which includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. A summary of
significant accounting policies is set out in note 3.

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(a) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The measurement basis used in preparing the financial statements is at
historical cost.

(b) Fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated in the statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
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3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method, as follows:-

Owned assets

- Leasehold improvements 3 years
- Office equipment 5 years
- Computer equipment 3years
- Furniture and fixtures 3 years

Right-of-use asset
- Leasehold land and building Over the lease term

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of fixed assets is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use
of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of fixed assets is determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised
in profit or loss.

(c) Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the statement
of financial position when the Council becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to
receive cash flows from the assets expire; the Council transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets; or
the Council neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the assets but has not retained control on the
assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the assets’ carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received
is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in
the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and
the consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss.
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3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(d) Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis
where the purchase or sale of an asset is under a contract whose terms
require delivery of the asset within the timeframe established by the
market concerned, and are initially measured at fair value, plus directly
attributable transaction costs except in the case of investments at fair
value through profit or loss. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of investments at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets (including trade and other receivables) are classified
under this category if they satisfy both of the following conditions:

the assets are held within a business model whose objective is to
hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and

the contractual terms of the assets give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method less loss allowances
for expected credit losses.

(e) Loss allowances for expected credit losses

The Council recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses
on financial assets at amortised cost. Expected credit losses are the
weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of a default
occurring as the weights.

At the end of each reporting period, the Council measures the loss
allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the
expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over
the expected life of that financial instrument (“lifetime expected credit
losses”), or if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition.

If, at the end of the reporting period, the credit risk on a financial
instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Council measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at
an amount equal to the portion of lifetime expected credit losses that
represents the expected credit losses that result from default events on
that financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting period.

The amount of expected credit losses or reversal to adjust the loss
allowance at the end of the reporting period to the required amount is
recognised in profit or loss as an impairment gain or loss.



$tZE Chapter7
f75¥8%  Financial Statements

3 EEGHEE (&)
(f) #E
() MENESE (REMEIFRLEZBER

3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(f) Leases

(i) Definition of a lease (upon application of HKFRS 16 in accordance with

BIMEREBMBREENF 1655%)
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transitions in note 4)

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from business
combinations on or after the date of initial application, the Council
assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease based on the
definition under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification date or acquisition
date, as appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed unless the
terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently changed.

(i) The Council as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in accordance

with transitions in note 4)

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Council applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option. It also
applies the recognition exemption for lease of low-value assets. Lease
payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are
recognized as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:
(@ the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

(b) any lease payments made at or before the commencement date,
less any lease incentives received; and

(¢ anyinitial direct costs incurred by the Council.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Council is reasonably certain to obtain
ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end of the lease term
is depreciated from commencement date to the end of the useful life.
Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.
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3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(f) Leases (continued)

(i)) The Council as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in accordance

with transitions in note 4) (continued)

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Council recognises and
measures the lease liability at the present value of lease payments
that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Council uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not
readily determinable.

The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by interest
accretion and lease payments.

The Council remeasures lease liahilities (and makes a corresponding
adjustment to the related right-of-use assets) whenever:

(@ the lease term has changed or there is a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case the related
lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments
using a revised discount rate at the date of reassessment.

(b) the lease payments change due to changes in market rental rates
following a market rent review, in which cases the related lease liability
is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using the
initial discount rate.

The Council presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on the
statement of financial position.

(iii) The Council as a lessee (prior to 1 April 2019)

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term. Contingent rentals arising under
operating leases are recognised as an expense in the period in which
they are incurred.

(g) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and at bank. Cash equivalents are short-
term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.



3 EEGHEE (&)
(h) £ fth & £ ¥ H

HAthFE AT RIS ADHA R A T EREST -
HBBRBHEMARTR > ERHEINRZE
BUAREK > BIEMAETER o

(i) BERABER

MRAEAMEHENFHAIEEER
HEERT > AMBAMRAIEGSERLE
Mt TERMSRENATEMMG
it AEEEHRZFEN SRR
ENBEREE WREREHE
BEKX > RIRBSAEERANRENR
B

YN RASEF R H B R BEIE R - B2
EEANAMSRFHAIENMGS > B
RZEGREANARR » BEENT
B R] BENEARRRUFRID » IRAEHY
EHRARTRBRUAZSERRENHEEE
EFERERDHFRE > ZEHTERK
BRaARE X BEENDREANRE
PR A BRSN

(j) W A HERR

(i) BRAT#EEN

RS EMEE A SRS W E AT
B3 FE 1T 2 A BN B MY A IR 1 B > BRI 48
BEERAQAAEEREST o
EMBEREEENBTHBEARL
KfFHEB » MR BB ER TR AT A
RARERESTAZERAR °

(ii) M2 UWA
M RWARERBMBF R AR

(k) BREEUSMN AR BRI EERE

REHESHX » 2SS RARBRAE
BERNETRELEENREE > X
HEZEERTHRENEBE - B8
TAREHRAEGEE > ZEENA
WEEERFEUFEEGEEBE °
N2 E E YRR BB X A AT REAR T AL
AEETLREEMBNREELEE
fusJfelfg - EET —EEER—
RWDBRERE  cRXEEGRIE

3

$tZE Chapter7
f75¥8%  Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(h) Other payables

0)

@

Other payables are initially measured at fair value and, after initial
recognition, at amortised cost, except for short-term payables with no
stated interest rate and the effect of discounting being immaterial, that
are measured at their original invoice amount.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount
when the Council has a legal or constructive obligation arising as
a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made. Where the time value of money is material, provisions
are stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to settle
the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue recognition

() Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there
is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the
Council will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to the purchase of fixed assets are
included in deferred income and are credited to the statement of
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the expected
lives of the related assets.

(i) Interest income
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.

(k) Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill

At the end of reporting period, the Council reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with finite useful
lives to determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Council
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis
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3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(continued)

(k) Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill
() ETEH

of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to
(i) BERZARRE

individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.
() Employee benefits
() Employee leave entitlements

EEMERBNESEHFERGWM
A o EREHR > HESRMURE
MEENBABEHEREWAIRE

f# o

BEAZENRBRERIGER
ENRBARRAEE

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they
(i) BRFERI B A

the end of reporting period.

accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated liability
for annual leave as a result of services rendered by employees up to

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity or paternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.
(i) Retirement benefit costs
FEFAFESHNNEEECLMAR The Council has joined the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme

ARG TR I RFIM AT (the MPF Scheme) established under the Mandatory Provident
T8 RBEHE) - xEAZE
EEmRREEELARARR 5%
R UEA $1,5005 LR o %t
ZEEERAGZEENHEER > ILH
EEAUERTE

Fund Ordinance for non-civil service contract staff. The Council

contributes 5% of the relevant income of staff members under

the MPF Scheme and subject to ceiling of $1,500 per month. The
assets of the Scheme are held separately from those of the Council,

in funds under the control of trustee.

BE:A e E AN R =R Payments to the MPF Scheme are charged as an expense as they

Xt o fall due.

(m) BABE TS (m)Related parties

a) —BALTHRHEHARBERALGHE

Bim o MRZAL

a) Aperson or a close member of that person’s family is related to the
Council if that person:
(i) BEEBIHEREZERAE ; () has control or joint control over the Council;
(i) EHEAEEREATE S ; K (i) has significant influence over the Council; or
(iIAXENAREEAS o
b) —EERIRAXGHRE S > U
RZERFTEUTEMER !
() —EEREATENANGHH

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the Council.
applies:
FREEEMN MRV EET
5tEl;

(i) —EEREE (a) PRMAAN L

b) An entity is related to the Council if any of the following conditions
HISHEER ; 5

(i) (@) () PHEN —Z A LTH—@E
BEREBNEARE

(i) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
Council.
Ha—EE
RBHFEAREEAS -

in (a).

of employees of either the Council or an entity related to the
(i) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified

(VEERXBEREP-—MINER

(iii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
the entity.

BETERAKE AR AR GEM

FEEEASRE °

entity or is a member of the key management personnel of

(iv) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
BULRESREBRFEZES | 2019/20 TIERS

provides key management personnel services to the Council.
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4 Changes in accounting policies

The Council has initially applied the new and revised HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA that are first effective for accounting periods beginning on or after
1 April 2019, including :-

HKFRS 16, Leases

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation

Amendments to HKAS 19, Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement

Amendments to HKAS 28, Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint
Ventures

Amendments to HKFRSs, Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015 — 2017
Cycle

HK(IFRIC) — Int 23, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

Except for HKFRS 16, Leases, the application of other new and
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on
the Council’s financial positions and performance for the current and prior
years and/or on the disclosures set out in these financial statements.

HKFRS 16, Leases

The Council has applied HKFRS 16 for the first time in the current year.
HKFRS 16 superseded HKAS 17 “Leases” (“HKAS 17”), and the related
interpretations.

Definition of a lease

The Council has elected the practical expedient to apply HKFRS 16 to
contracts that were previously identified as leases applying HKAS 17 and
HK(IFRICO)-Int 4 “Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease”
and not apply this standard to contracts that were not previously identified
as containing a lease. Therefore, the Council has not reassessed contracts
which already existed prior to the date of initial application.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after 1 April 2019, the Council
applies the definition of a lease in accordance with the requirements set
out in HKFRS 16 in assessing whether a contract contains a lease.

As a lessee

The Council has applied HKFRS 16 retrospectively with the cumulative
effect recognised at the date of initial application, 1 April 2019.
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4 Changes in accounting policies (continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases (continued)

As at 1 April 2019, the Council recognised additional lease liabilities and
right-of-use assets at amounts equal to the related lease liabilities by
applying HKFRS 16.C8(b)(ii) transition. Any difference at the date of initial
application is recognised in the opening retained profits and comparative
information has not been restated.

When applying the modified retrospective approach under HKFRS 16 at
transition, the Council applied the following practical expedients to leases
previously classified as operating leases under HKAS 17, on lease-by-
lease basis, to the extent relevant to the respective lease contracts:

() elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for
leases with lease term ends within 12 months of the date of initial
application or leases with low value;

(i) excluded initial direct costs from measuring the right-of-use assets at
the date of initial application; and

(i) used hindsight based on facts and circumstances as at date of initial
application in determining the lease term for the Council’s leases with
extension and termination options.

5 Critical accounting estimates and judgement

The Council’s management makes assumptions, estimates and
judgements in the process of applying the Council’s accounting policies
that affect the assets, liabilities, income and expenses in the financial
statements prepared in accordance with HKFRSs. The assumptions,
estimates and judgements are based on historical experience and other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. While
the management reviews their judgements, estimates and assumptions
continuously, the actual results will seldom equal to the estimates.

Certain key assumptions and risk factors in respect of the financial risk
management are set out in note 18. There are no other key sources of
estimation uncertainty that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of asset and liabilities within the next
financial year.

6 Government grants

Government grants represent the funds granted by the Hong Kong
Government for the Council’s services which is determined with regard to
the needs of the Council as presented in its annual budget and proposed
projects.
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7 HfthlrA 7 Otherincome
2020 2019
$ $
FEUWA Interestincome 543,177 332,364
HMIEW A Sundry income 4,528 1,038
547,705 333,402
8 FRRBREEWE 8 Surplus and total comprehensive income for the year
FRNBBREEANRFEDEFA Surplus and total comprehensive income for the year is arrived at after
charging:
2020 2019
$ $

(a) BI 4 Staff costs

- BEIMAREER

- Contributions to Mandatory Provident Funds 1,108,008 1,028,026

-FE s IERHEMER

- Salaries, wages and other benefits 60,125,719 50,120,136

61,233,727 51,148,162

(b) —A& R T &M General and administrative expenses

ZEEMB s Auditor's remuneration 39,500 39,500

MENSEBEHERSESER Rent, rates and management fee 5,530,994 12,166,914

ABRRBBEHKER Public and educational affairs 8,820,942 1,271,635

BZRE:12I&MA Observers’ scheme 495,052 491,534

RIREMR Insurance 69,066 86,920

#EFMIRE Repairs and maintenance 3,006,268 2,054,738

BN TS AR E A Overseas duty visit 160,010 2,131

NEAREER Utilities 403,935 341,313

#rE Depreciation 11,595,644 4,564,437

JERFEMIEE Non-recurrent projects 7,536,695 680,805

H¥ Others 1,947,749 1,254,850

39,605,855 22,954,777

(c)FZE kA Finance cost

FHE&aEZFE Interest on lease liabilities 491,658

9 RIA 9 Taxation

RiE (MBIKRGI) BI7RNHRE » ZF%E  No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in the financial
RERR > AEAGBATEAMBTRMRKS  statements as the Council is exempted from profits tax pursuant to section
REBMGMER - 87 of the Inland Revenue Ordinance.
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10

EIE&EE 10 Fixed assets
BERE EREEE
Owned assets Right-of-use
assets
HER#EIRE GHARRE NWAERE BhERE et HELHR k]
Leasehold Furniture Office Computer Sub-total £ Total
improve- and fixtures equipment  equipment Leasehold
ments land and
buildings
$ $ $ $ $
R4 Cost
R-E—hEmA—A
At 1 April 2019 6,171,337 1,077,539 1,578,694 18,879,692 27,707,262 27,707,262
#E Additions 49,380 4,017,114 4,166,494 34,501,815 38,668,309
EE Disposals (25,425) (25,425) (25,425)
A ETBF=A=+—H
At 31 March 2020 6,171,337 1,052,114 1,628,074 22,996,806 31,848,331 34,501,815 66,350,146
BEH4FE Accumulated depreciation
R-ZB—NEmA—A
At 1 April 2019 5,247,097 825,311 1,170,026 11,561,124 18,803,558 - 18,803,558
FANIE Charge for the year 782,538 187,345 132,077 3,649,820 4,751,780 6,843,864 11,595,644
EEZEH Write back on disposals (25,425) (25,425) (25,425)
RIZEZEF=A=+—H
At 31 March 2020 6,029,635 987,231 1,302,103 15,210,944 23,529,913 6,843,864 30,373,777
BRMEF{E Net book value
A ZE_ZTHF=A=+—H
At 31 March 2020 141,702 64,883 325,971 7,785,862 8,318,418 27,657,951 35,976,369
P%#s Cost
RIZ2—N\EWA—H
At 1 April 2018 6,132,037 965,439 1,603,766 14,670,021 23,371,263 - 23,371,263
#E Additions 39,300 112,100 22,078 4,557,671 4,731,149 4,731,149
EE Disposals (47,150)  (348,000)  (395,150) (395,150)
A ZE—-NE=ZA=+—H
At 31 March 2019 6,171,337 1,077,539 1,578,694 18,879,692 27,707,262 - 27,707,262
BEH4FE Accumulated depreciation
RIZE—N\ENA—H
At 1 April 2018 4,458,560 615,769 1,081,180 8,478,762 14,634,271 - 14,634,271
FANIE Charge for the year 788,537 209,542 135,996 3,430,362 4,564,437 4,564,437
EEZEH Write back on disposals (47,150)  (348,000)  (395,150) (395,150)
RZIZE—-NE=B=+—H
At 31 March 2019 5,247,097 825,311 1,170,026 11,561,124 18,803,558 - 18,803,558
BRMEF{E Net book value
A _E-NE=B=+—H
At 31 March 2019 924,240 252,228 408,668 7,318,568 8,903,704 8,903,704
B SERERRIERHFEEE | 2019/20 TIFRS
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$R17723 Bank balances

FHRHAMR 7 =18 B M E HATF =X
Time deposits with original maturity less than 3 months 10,000,000 8,000,000

HBRARRRERERZRERIREEEY
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position and
the statement of cash flows
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11 Cash and cash equivalents

2020 2019
$ $
27,979,364 17,405,973

37,979,364 25,405,973

12

i

HE 3 B 5 44 B

—h&E /| 2T \FmA—HNEHF

Balance as at 1 April 2019/2018

FENEDABRANEEE
Recognised as income in the year

RZB-Z®

Balance as at 31 March 2020/2019
BBEA TReaE) N

Less : Amount included in “current liabilities”

A TIERBEE) e

Amount included in “non-current liabilities”

12 Deferred government grants

F/ ZB-NE=ZA=+—HWN%E

2020 2019

$ $
1,381,528 3,538,194
(771,945) (2.156,666)
609,583 1,381,528
(609,583) (771,945)
609,583

ERERHBTEZERRRHAEREEFE

HRG > HEERWERNEFANET

Bl o

The grants received are mainly for the development of a secure email
system for electronic communication among Members and the Secretariat.
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13 HtEARIEREER

13 Other payables and accruals

2020 2019

$ $

Bt # & 1& Financial liabilities 11,504,056 4,379,124
KRBV A FEBAEER Unutilized annual leave balances 2,965,625 1,982,384
14,469,681 6,361,508

HtENREREFERRANTER

14 BTHRMEEE

Other payables and accruals are expected to be settled within one year.

14 Provision for staff gratuities

2020 2019
$ $
A ZE-NE /| ZE-/\FEWNA—HNEER
Balance as at 1 April 2019/2018 6,241,933 4,939,214
REEBFHREME Provision made for the year 5,067,194 4,222,685
SEEBHAEEME Provision utilised for the year (4,430,343) (2,919,966)
R _EEF | TE-NEFE=ZA=1+—HWNEER

Balance as at 31 March 2020/2019 6,878,784 6,241,933

BETHRNERERATXNERREYN
MWETHNREEAEARMEMmRIL

15 HEAR

Provision for staff gratuities is set up for the gratuity payments which will
be payable to employees of the Council who complete their contracts
commencing from the date of their employment.

15 Lease liabilities

2020 2019
$ $
B{EIAEHIE Minimum lease payments due
-—% A Within 1 year 12,314,052
-—EBFBEHRER 1to5vyears 16,519,472
28,833,524
B RKRBEZH Less: future finance charges (890,955)
fAE&EIRME Present value of lease liabilities 27,942,569
S ir{E% Analysed as:
MBS Current portion 11,724,179
JETRENEBS Non-current portion 16,218,390
27,942,569

BUSBRESRERHFESS | 2019/20 TERE



16 ZRitEEf

REEEBRNALAEE_T—tERA
“+ZHEN (THRZHESE) (16
TEk ) B AEAURERRRR
BRZEEMENEARME  MZRER
BAERBHZMBEELEELEDEN
25% ° MMM EHR Z FEFHE L&
FEEEMETEMN25% » [RIFFEME
EHREBRBERILE  AERELBHLE
RNSBRRETFEBEMA o

FERAEREERS BARERE R
FTEBERBAENHE - REMZ
FRETEBRNNBEF#ER T -F
FZR=+—HETHEHE (2019: XE5
UEVREERFZBRFRAERERE
45,577,599 75 F BB B ) °

i
AZECETEZAZ+—B RETTR

FREERETAREANYERKRRE
ARABERNT

17

— £ A Within 1year

$tZE Chapter7
f75¥8%  Financial Statements

16 Accumulated surplus

In accordance with section 6 of the Memorandum of Administrative
Arrangements (“MAA”) dated 22 June 2017 signed between the Hong
Kong Government and the Council, the Council is allowed to keep and
accumulate any unspent recurrent subvention as reserve, subject to the
condition that the reserve accumulated should not exceed 25% of its
recurrent subvention of that financial year. If the reserve as at the end of
the financial year exceeds 25% of the recurrent subvention of that financial
year, the Council shall return the amount in excess of the limit to the Hong
Kong Government, except with the approval of Secretary for Financial
Services and the Treasury.

The Council considers the amount of excessive reserve for the year has
not been conclusive up to the reporting date, no provision for the refund
of excessive reserve to the Hong Kong Government has been made as at
31 March 2020 accordingly (2019 : an excessive reserve of $45,577,599
accumulated from previous years has been refunded to the Hong Kong
Government by the Council).

17 Operating leases commitments

At 31 March 2020, the total future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases in respect of properties are payable as
follows:-

2020 2019
$ $
3,898,295

ERMBERBVHBRSEANFI6HKE > X
REMRBEHERNREEIAEREE
B ABUERAEERE - EREMNR
=EXT

18 £WMIA
AEREMBEED BUTER -

REHEATY RN EMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost
% Deposits

FEULF B Interest receivable

REKRIRWEEEY Cash and cash equivalents

Upon adoption of HKFRS 16, the present value of future minimum lease
payment, which is no longer disclosed as commitments as shown above,
is recognized as right-of-use asset. The comparative information has not
been restated.

18 Financial instruments

The Council has classified its financial assets in the following categories:

2020 2019

$ $
3,574,106 3,042,819
13,562 3,222
37,979,364 25,405,973
41,567,032 28,452,014
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18 EHEIE (nﬁ)
FEREMBREDAUTER :

18 Financial instruments (continued)

The Council has classified its financial liabilities in the following categories:

2020 2019
S $
HRIBER TR ERMEE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
HihfERIEREST &M Other payables and accruals 11,504,056 4,379,124
fAE&ME Lease liabilities 27,942,569
39,446,625 4,379,124

FFEZRMIANKEERN _Z-—NER
—EEF=-RA=+—H EE%E’J’&?TE
WRBEEKRER °

FEMNEEEHREMIACHAHEES
Rz > RBEERBRIERRR Zliﬁi_
BUTHREEZFEAR » UREZE

éj‘$%’ﬂ’]ﬂ3‘i‘“%~%fﬁ)§zﬂk/ﬂﬂ’],aTT%IJEV
@

(a) GERMR
FENEBEARETEEAR  MRSA
BHESNHMEEEMSAMREME - &
ENEERAKRTIERBHRTER
RITERNERRREER > EREMR
ZIRITIBSEBRITRIIRENE
A o

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not materially different
from their fair values as at 31 March 2019 and 2020.

The Council is exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk
arising in the normal course of its operation and financial instruments. The
Council’s risk management objectives, policies and processes mainly focus
on minimising the potential adverse effects of these risks on its financial
performance and position by closely monitoring the individual exposure.

(@) Credit risk
The Council has no concentration of credit risk. The maximum exposure
to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of the financial
assets. The Council is exposed to credit risk on financial assets, mainly
attributable to deposits with banks. The credit risk on bank deposits is
limited because the counterparties are authorised financial institutions
regulated under the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance.

2020 2019
$ $

8iE—% Summary quantitative data
¥& Deposits 3,574,106 3,042,819
FEUFIE Interest receivable 13,562 3,222
#R4T7E# Bank balances 27,979,364 17,405,973

FIHREAMR /DR = 1B B W E HAF R

Time deposits with original maturity less than 3 months 10,000,000 8,000,000
41,567,032 28,452,014
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18 &I AR (4)

(b) MENE & AR
FENRDEZAREMBEE - &
EHETFLEREE  BRTHENE
TMREFB/EE > LUREEBEEDN

[SElE:]
mz= °

TR TEAENEHMEBRENREHR
MRBFSHHRR - ZFTMEBBEREUT
WARIMIRBERE (BEUTOFER
(TR ) BN REPRNAEFE

$tZE Chapter7
f75¥8%  Financial Statements

18 Financial instruments (continued)

(b) Liquidity risk

The Council is exposed to liquidity risk on financial liabilities. It
manages its funds conservatively by maintaining a comfortable level
of cash and cash equivalents in order to meet continuous operational
need. The Council ensures that it maintains sufficient cash which is
available to meet its liquidity.

The details of remaining contractual maturities at the end of the
reporting period of the financial liabilities, which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current

MFEAR) UkEEEEZTNRER at the end of the reporting period) and the earliest date the Council can
HAAZ%E - be required to pay are as follows:-
HESES ¢!
RERBEE
Total contractual —FRFHERBE BB FETFBELEF
IREEE undiscounted Within 1yearoron  Over 1 year but within
Carrying amount cash flow demand 5 years
$ $ $ $
2020
HittEIRIEREEA
Other payables and accruals 11,504,056 11,504,056 11,504,056
HHESBE Lease liabilities 27,942,569 28,833,524 12,314,052 16,519,472
39,446,625 40,337,580 23,818,108 16,519,472
2019
HittEIRIEREE A
Other payables and accruals 4,379,124 4,379,124 4,379,124

(c) M= EER
FENMRABRETERBRITEM ©
FENRITERTIEREHER » AR
RERE - Hit > AEFEHFAEEH
ERERMEKER

BIEHE Summary quantitative data

FESREE Floating-rate financial assets

iR47457 Deposits with banks
FEAERRR DR =@ B O E AR

Time deposits with original maturity less than 3 months

(©) Interest rate risk

The Council’s exposure on fair value interest rate risk mainly arises from
its cash deposits with bank. The Council mainly holds deposits with
bank in saving account and the exposure is considered not significant.
In consequence, no material exposure on fair value interest rate risk is
expected.

2020 2019

$ $
11,307,397 13,279,489
10,000,000 8,000,000
21,307,397 21,279,489

FEREHMEENN AR IFHRMED
o AaEEETaRREAErRH
RAREELEEATE -

No sensitivity analysis for the Council’s exposure to interest rate risk arising
from deposits with bank is prepared since based on the management’s
assessment the exposure is considered not significant.
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18 £MTAH (&)
() UATEHEZSRTA

RBER, FGALREEMIAUR
FEFER o

19 FBARS

FRBEMBRENRZ RERI 0 £E
HRBMARERNETZIIZRENT !

AEgMEME Honorarium paid to Council members

18 Financial instruments (continued)

(d) Financial instrument at fair value
At the end of reporting period, there were no financial instruments
stated at fair value.

19 Material related party transactions

The Council had the following material related party transactions during
the year:

2020 2019
$ $
870,200 859,640

ERXBERRRBNMERS (EFRY
REAGHMERTEEEASTREFAE
mHHE) EEEBEEBBETRRLE
WM HEEREZRBEEZFET

20 MBEZHEENEEHIR

TRHELFEREREZINEEET)
BRERASKIFRSEH - MEITHMELE
NERDAREREMY » ARKRRER
ERAEVBRETDESRETHE
ENRERE -

All transactions related to the procurement of goods and services involving
organisations in which a member of the Council and key management
personnel may have an interest are conducted in the normal course of
business and in accordance with the Council’s financial obligations and
normal procurement procedures.

20 Reconciliation of liabilites arising from financing
activities

The table below details changes in the Council’s liabilities from financing
activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising
from financing activities are liabilities for which cash flows were, or future
cash flows will be, classified in the Council’s statement of cash flows as
cash flows from financing activities.

2020 2019
$ $
FA4E# At beginning of the year
MERSHEEEZEE Changes from financing cash flows:
BfJf& AL Capital element of lease rentals paid (6,559,246)
BfJHEEF B Interest element of lease rentals paid (491,658)
MERESRESES 2 EH4EEE Total changes from financing cash flows (7,050,904)
Hith& 8 Other changes:
AEBEZFIE Interest on lease liabilities 491,658
REARIHEEMEMNEERE
Increase in lease liabilities from entering into new leases during the year 34,501,815
4%k At end of the year 27,942,569
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21 EfEMHEREMNRERERE
ERMBHRSER

UTHEEMRERERRRERNZEEY
BREER > BEERNALXTEERY
BHIREAR -

BERUBREENE 7R RESH
HKFRS 17, Insurance Contracts

$tE Chapter7
f75¥8%  Financial Statements

21 Hong Kong financial reporting standards issued but
not yet effective for the year

HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective for the year include
the following HKFRSs which may be relevant to the Council’s operations
and financial statements:

KU TEERRER
MBER
Effective for annual
periods beginning
on or after

—E-—F—HA—H
1 January 2021

ERMBWEERB IR (B5IF) ZFNE

& —ETE—RA—H

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Definition of a business 1 January 2020

BRAMBBREERB 10K KB B GTEERISE 2858 (18514 )

KREELHEBENIRSELEZHANEELHELTE MR EE
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28, Sales or Contribution of To be determined

Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

BEARAGHENFT 1 RNREBETEUNE IR (B5IR) EAMZES —EZTF—A—H
Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8, Definition of material 1 January 2020

EAMBREERNBON BRI EREIORREBMBREERB 758 (B4 )

eSS

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

“¥%F—A—H
1 January 2020

FERAFELERRMZEETBYHER
SR o DT FERTRAZTERYE
REZNTEHEAGERERNFENNE
BRELEATE - FEREETEZT
BEMBREERNREMBUIEBNEK
2EHNTE -

22 BBMBERR

EUBRREN_ZBE_ZEF/N\B-+HE
AAENRETEM o

The Council has not early adopted these HKFRSs. Initial assessment
has indicated that the adoption of these HKFRSs would not have a
significant impact on the Council’s financial statements in the year of initial
application. The Council will be continuing with the assessment of the
impact of these HKFRSs and other significant changes may be identified as
aresult.

22 Approval of financial statements

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Council on
20 August 2020.
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AR#5 % Performance Pledges

ELEERITERENEERE > 5] T —RIIBRF &G :

We attach great importance to efficient and quality performance.
Our performance pledges are:

RFISE (FEEEFSE)"

Harﬁﬁn E"Jfé?fises Performance target

J (standard response time)*
ok HE R BB
Enquiries By telephone / in person Immediately

2H 10KA

In writing Within 10 days

BRI — A% 1E 2 Normal cases
Monitoring of PR SRR TSR — B E N EHER 3EE K
complaints (BRI R R R S) Within 3 months

Minor cases (such as Impoliteness or Neglect of Duty)
with no more than one round of Query raised by the
IPCC with CAPO

B EZ Complicated cases

FIEBRENER (FIMERITHIRESRE) »
FERFERFRUEZPR —HEANDHER
All serious cases (such as Assault or
Fabrication of Evidence) and minor cases with two or
more rounds of Queries raised by the IPCC with CAPO

ZE % {EZ Review cases

BEREBZEEREFNATERSENER
Requests for reviewing the classification of
Reportable Complaints

*ABRERGERRRKATRS / DN H s
Counting from the date of receipt of CAPO’s final investigation report/ response

SEEER
Within 6 months

SEETR
Within 6 months



EEGIBRFAEREIT A ERAE -
LESEZBRERREREES -
NE—TSRAEHNRZBEE -

The Independent Police Complaints Council does its
utmost to discharge statutory duties and identify
improvements during vetting to further enhance the
service quality of the Police.

<

HERGIUZERATER  HEBEEST-AROCEE B T 2E 1 THE I ERNERRE > RETHSRTUIRE
AERE S FMRABNENBEZERKAFER - MELETNRARNBRTEBREGNRERL > AREEE—HE
2Rk BRFLHAEMBEENSEERR  ZEMERBRFERFE > MAARKEBRNGE > LEKHERFRE
BRIGEFHIARRK o

Telescope is applied as the design theme in this Report. The telescope, with its three sections symbolising the three core
values of the IPCC, viz. independence, impartiality and integrity, signifies that the IPCC has examined every complaint
case based on evidence and in a fair and impartial manner. The IPCC logo placed against the Hong Kong skyline at the
centre of the lens represents that the IPCC always looks towards the future. By making forward-looking recommendations
for improvement, the IPCC consolidates the two-tier police complaints system, strengthens public trust of the Police, and
works together with its stakeholders to build a brighter future for Hong Kong.



(iFE BUERESRERGEES

Independent Police Complaints Council

BHER{FEEIE26RERNAE10/£1006-10=
Rooms 1006-10, 10/F, China Resources Building,
No. 26 Harbour Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong

EBRE Tel 2524 3841 [ 2862 8399
{#E Fax 2524 1801 [ 2525 8042
BE Email eng@ipce.gov.hk
#A4t Website www.ipcc.gov.hk

MIX
Hﬁ*&ﬁﬁ'ﬁ Z':‘T%EED i P:g;‘;“é;ﬁ;’:‘;&?’
© 2020 Independent Police Complaints Council. All Rights Reserved. g FSC™ C134852




